CITY OF ELKO

X CITY MANAGER
Y 1751 COLLEGE AVENUE
El G/ B, ELKO, NEVADA 89801
(775) T77-T1 10/FAX (775) 777-7119

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, February 27, 2018
Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801, at 4:00 P.M., P.D.S.T.
Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council.

In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko
Website, http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website,

https://notice.nv.gov, and in the following locations:

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
571 1daho Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 22, 2018 at 8:50 a.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 22, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT
1448 Silver, Elko NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 22, 2018 at 8:40 a.m.

ELKO CITY HALL
1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801
Date: Time Posted: February 22, 2018 at 8:30 a.m.

Posted by: Kim Wilkinson _ Administrative Assistant M Lhords
Name Title Signature

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at
kwilkinson @elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV or
on the City website at http://www.elkocitynv.gov/

Dated this 22" day of February, 2018

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, 175 e, Elko, Nevada 89801,
or by calling (775) 777-7110.

Curtis Calder, City Manager




CITY OF ELKO

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING
4:00 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2018
ELKO CITY HALL, 1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted for
this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item

on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: February 13, 2018 Regular Session
L PRESENTATION
A. Presentation of an Appreciation Plaque to Planning Commission Chairman Aaron
Martinez, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY-NON ACTION
ITEM

II. PERSONNEL
A. Employee Introductions:
1.) George Tibbitts, Parks Maintenance Technician I, Parks Department

B. Fire Department, Volunteer Coordinator Jamie Winrod, Badge Pinning and
Administration of the Fire Officer’s Oath

III. APPROPRIATIONS

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
B. Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit bids for the Effluent Reuse

and Sanitary Sewer Railroad Bores and Humboldt River Crossing to the New
Sports Complex, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Created on 02/27/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 7



This portion of the project was not completed last year as part of the Effluent Reuse
Pipeline and Sewer to the Elko Sports Complex Project. Staff is seeking Council
approval to rebid the work. RL

Review, consideration, and possible approval to award a bid for the City of Elko
Water Main Removal and Replacement Project, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Council directed Staff to solicit bids for this project on January 9, 2018. A Bid Tally
Sheet is included as supplemental agenda information. RL

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Professional Services Agreement
with Aqua Engineering for Construction Management related services on the
Secondary Clarifier #3 Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Council directed Staff to solicit bids for this project at the November 28, 2017
meeting. Bids will be opened on March 6, 2018. RL

Review, consideration, and possible action to award a bid for the City of Elko WRF
Reuse Water Fill Station, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Council directed Staff to solicit bids for this project on December 12, 2017. A bid
tally sheet is attached. RL

Review, consideration, and possible award of the bid for the Cedar Street
Reconstruction Project Phase II, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

This item has been approved and budgeted for in the 2017/18 Fiscal Year Budget,
Capital Construction Fund. DS

Review, consideration, and possible authorization to bid the sports complex as a
Two Phase Project, and authorization to separate the outfield fencing and the
comfort station into individual contracts, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Council authorized Staff to restructure and possibly rebid the proposed Sports
Complex Project at its February 23, 2018. Staff has confirmed the deletions
proposed at the February 13 meeting. Staff has completed a review of the technical
specifications identifying qualifications and specification, which can be eliminated
with the intent to reduce costs further. The proposed revisions to the technical
specifications have been accounted for in field cost reduction and cannot be further
quantified. The proposed project has been structured over a two-year period
providing additional resources to fund the project. The proposed 2018 project
would include the following:

Created on 02/27/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 2 of 7



. Site grading

Installation of electrical utilities (with some items omitted)
Sound wall

Pump station and irrigation mainlines

Water source to wetlands

Storm drainage infrastructure

The following items would be included as additives alternates:

. Field construction excluding outfield fencing
° Field lighting installed

Additional owner costs of approximately $507,871 to cover the costs for NV
Energy, QA/QC testing, 404 permit management, and historical preservation
management are projected. This cost does not include either purchase or lease of
field lights, which would be deferred until the next budget cycle.

The remainder of the project would be bid as three separate contracts as follows:

o Outfield fencing
. Scoreboards, sports equipment, and parking lot construction
. Comfort station

SAW

IV.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2017 Annual Report of
Planning Commission Activities, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning Commission is required to
prepare and present an Annual Report of its activities to Council. On February 6,
2018, the Planning Commission took action to approve the 2017 Annual Report of
Planning Commission Activities, and forward it to the Council. CL

V. NEW BUSINESS

A.

Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a Letter of Resignation from
Mr. Aaron Martinez from the Planning Commission, and to further authorize Staff
to commence with the standard recruitment process to fill the vacancy on the
Planning Commission, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

This resignation is a result of Mr. Martinez no longer living within the City of Elko.
Mr. Stanton has provided a legal opinion stating that not residing within the
boundary of the City of Elko would disqualify Mr. Martinez from being appointed
to the Planning Commission. CL

Created on 02/27/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 3 of 7



VI. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

A.

Review, consideration, and possible action to approve Curb, Gutter, and Sidewalk
Waiver No. 1-18, filed by Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC, which waives
the requirement for curb and gutter on the north side of West Idaho Street abutting
APN 001-679-011, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Per Elko City Code Section 2-13-3, public improvements are required when vacant
lots are developed. The applicant has submitted application for a permit for
development of the parcel. NDOT has reviewed the need for curb and gutter at this
location and has determined that it is not needed to control drainage in this area.
Staff recommends approval of the waiver for curb and gutter with sidewalk still
being required. JD

Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and
Wine License and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua
Hunt and Joseph Hunt, dba Hunt Convenience Stores, LLC, located at 275 12%
Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and
Wine License and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua
Hunt and Joseph Hunt, dba Idaho Street Station, LLC, located at 1600 Idaho Street,
Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

VII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A.

Hearing to determine cause whether or not to suspend or revoke the brothel license
of Soon Yee Scott and Kim Watson, a partnership, d/b/a Mona’s Ranch (“Mona’s
Ranch”), based upon alleged employee misconduct, together with acts or omissions
of Mona’s Ranch in suffering, allowing or permitting the alleged employee
misconduct, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On or about February 3, 2018, Mona’s Ranch bartender/manager Peter Alberro was
arrested and the subject of subsequent seizures of controlled
substances/paraphernalia on or about Mona’s Ranch premises. Specifically, Mr.
Alberro, who resided from time to time on the premises of Mona’s Ranch, was
arrested for trafficking under NRS 453.385, Unlawful Possession for Sale NRS
453.336, and Misdemeanor Drug Paraphernalia NRS 453.336 and Mona’s Ranch
is potentially accountable for relevant related activities on or about the premises, or
in conjunction therewith, of Mona’s Ranch, 103 S. 3™ Street, Elko, Nevada which
constitute a cause or causes for suspension and/or revocation of its brothel license
under Title 4 Chapter 9 of the Elko City Code. CC

Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 6-18, a
resolution of the Elko City Council, adopting a change in zoning district boundaries
from AG (General Agriculture District) to IC (Industrial Commercial),
approximately 62.03 acres of property located generally northeast of the

Created on 02/27/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 4 of 7



intersection of Statice Street and Delaware Ave., filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC.
and processed as Rezone No. 10-17, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

The Planning Commission considered the Subject Zone Change Request on
February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation to Council to adopt
a resolution, which conditionally approves Rezone No. 10-17. CL

Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 7-18, a
resolution of the Elko City Council, adopting a change in zoning district boundaries
from (LI) Light Industrial to (IC) Industrial Commercial, approximately 1.5 acres
of property located generally north side of Silver Street between River Street and
1% Street, APN 001-691-007, filed by MRP, LLC., and processed as Rezone No.
11-17, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Planning Commission considered the Subject Zone Change Request on
February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation to Council to adopt
a resolution, which approves Rezone No. 11-17. CL

Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 8-18, a
resolution of the Elko City Council, adopting a change in zoning district boundaries
from (AG) General Agriculture to (LI) Light Industrial, approximately 3 acres of
property located generally on the north side of West Idaho Street, approximately
2,500 feet east of I-80 Exit 298, filed by Swire Coca Cola, USA and processed as
Rezone No. 12-17, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Planning Commission considered the Subject Zone Change Request on
February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation to City Council to
adopt a resolution, which conditionally approves Rezone No. 12-17. CL

Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 9-18, a
resolution of the Elko City Council adopting a change in zoning district boundaries
from R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) to RO (Residential
Office), approximately 0.086 acres of property located generally on the south side
of Court Street, approximately 50 feet east of 9 Street, filed by Jason Land on
behalf of Blaine Branscomb and processed as Rezone No. 2-18, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Planning Commission considered the Subject Zone Change Request on
February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation to City Council to
adopt a resolution, which conditionally approves Rezone No. 2-18. CL

Second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 826, an
ordinance increasing the corporate limits of the City of Elko, Nevada, pursuant to
the provisions of N.R.S. 268.670 annexing thereto a certain tract of land partially
contiguous to, and not embraced within the present limits of the City of Elko
described as follows: a parcel of land located northeast of the intersection of Statice
Street and Delaware Avenue in Section 36, T. 35 N., R. 55 E., MDM, Elko County,

Created on 02/27/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 5 of 7



Nevada, consisting of 62.03 acres, filed by Surebrec Holdings LLC., and processed
as Annexation No. 2-17, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 23, 2018, and
directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the
Planning Commission. The Planning Commission considered the annexation on
February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation of approval with
findings back to Council. City Council held First Reading of the ordinance on
February 13, 2018. CL

Second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 827, an
ordinance increasing the corporate limits of the City of Elko, Nevada, pursuant to
the provisions of N.R.S. 268.670 annexing thereto a certain tract of land partially
contiguous- to and not embraced within the present limits of the City of Elko
described as follows: a parcel of land located on the north side of West Idaho Street
approximately 2,500 feet east of I-80 Exit 298, in Section 19, T. 34 N, R. 55 E,,
MDM, Elko County, Nevada, consisting of 3 acres, filed by Swire Coca-Cola USA
and processed as Annexation No. 3-17, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 9, 2018, and
directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the
Planning Commission. The Planning Commission considered the annexation on
February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation of approval with
findings back to Council. City Council held first reading of the ordinance on
February 13, 2018 CL

VIII. REPORTS

NOZZOARCCZIOTMOOW >

Mayor and City Council

City Manager

Assistant City Manager
Utilities Director

Public Works

Airport Manager

City Attorney

Fire Chief

Police Chief

City Clerk

City Planner

Development Manager
Administrative Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director
Civil Engineer

Building Official

Created on 02/27/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 6 of 7



COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

NOTE: The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time.
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an
item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

Curtis Calder
City Manager

Created on 02/27/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 7 of 7



City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada ) SS February 13, 2018

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting
beginning at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 13, 2018.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Johnson.

ROLL CALL
Mayor Present: Chris J. Johnson

Council Present: Councilman John Rice
Councilwoman Mandy Simons
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein
Councilman Reece Keener

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Shanell Owen, City Clerk
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager
Adeline Thibault, Environmental Coordinator
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Ben Reed Jr., Police Chief
Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
Jeff Ford, Building Official
Matt Griego, Fire Chief
Jim Foster, Airport Manager
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director
Dave Stanton, City Attorney
Tom Coyle, Deputy City Attorney
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive

agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

There were no public comments.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 28



APPROVAL OF MINUTES January 23,2018  Regular Session
The minutes were approved by general consent.

I PRESENTATIONS

A. A Proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of the month of February as “Beef
Month”, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY — NON-ACTION
ITEM

Mayor Johnson read the proclamation and presented a copy of it to a representative of the Elko
County Cattlewomen’s Association and she presented the Mayor with a tri-tip steak.

LaDonna Smith, Secretary Elko County Cattlewomen’s Association, explained she is new to the
association. She explained what the association does for the county.

IL PERSONNEL
A. Employee Introductions:
1.) Kyle Jones, Patrol Officer 11, Police Department
Present and introduced.
L. PRESENTATIONS (Cont.)

B. A Presentation of a Nevada LTAP Road Scholar Certificate to Jeremy Rekward,
and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY — NON-ACTION ITEM

Dennis Strickland acknowledged Jeremy Rekward for his completion of the Nevada LTAP Road
Scholar Program.

Jeremy Rekward, Equipment Operator I, said it took him three years to finish the program.
III. APPROPRIATIONS

C. Review, consideration, and possible approval to award the Equipment Bid for the
WRF Emergency Diesel Generator Project, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Council directed Staff to solicit bids at the January 9, 2018 meeting. Five (5) bids
and three (3) alternate bids were received. The City’s Electrical Engineer has
reviewed the bids, and finds the Smith Power Products Bid to meet the bid
specifications, and is the lowest cost option. A Bid Tally and recommendation has
been provided. RL

Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director, said Mr. Joe Elquist and Mrs. Corinne Dowers, the Electrical
Engineers for the project, were present to answer specific electrical questions.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 28



ok A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
approve award of bid to Smith Power Products Inc., in the amount of $291,750.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

D. Review, consideration, and possible approval to purchase a new Envirosight
RovverX Complete Mobile Inspection Truck by utilizing the Joinder Provision of
NRS 332.195, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

This piece of equipment consists of a new Ram 2500 Van with internal computer
and software licenses as well as camera equipment, crawler, and various sized
wheels, and accessories to televise sewer and storm drains from 6” to 60”

This project was budgeted in the current fiscal year at a reduced rate, in an
attempt to purchase a demo unit. This has not come to fruition, due to several
complications. A new unit is available at a higher than budgeted cost. However,
with the greatly reduced cost estimate at the WRF Fill Stand Project, there will be
money available in the current Fiscal Year Budget to cover the expenditure. RL

Mr. Limberg explained this is a piece of equipment that the Sewer Department and the Street
Department can both use. We can use a unit much more than we contract for in any given year.
We can get a long service life out of a piece of equipment like this. This one is designed from
six to sixty inches, with changing wheels and axles, so we can camera a lot of different pipes
with it and expect a long lifespan of use out of it.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked what is spent yearly on this with all the testing.

Mr. Limberg answered they don’t use it as much as they would like to. We are only spending
about $5000 and then the Street Department spends more on top of that. We are throwing the
money away by hiring others to do this.

Councilman Schmidtlein said he had an issue putting it on a van-mounted vehicle. Why not a
trailer mount? The maintenance that comes with the vehicles, after time it will need to be
replaced. The camera can go on for many years.

Mr. Limberg answered they liked this setup better. It is a lot smaller than a large truck and a
large trailer. They won’t be putting a lot of miles on the van.

Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, said they have talked about this in the fleet. This will
not be a frontline piece of equipment. They demoed the trailer version and they can be
problematic. They haven’t been able to look at our own infrastructure because we don’t own
something like this. We have found culverts that were caved in and they had no idea about it.
This will give us a better idea of what we have. This would be a great asset to the city.

Councilman Rice said we need to look more closely at our infrastructure. We lost two culverts
last year. This is a proactive move. If we discover something it can save us the cost of the unit.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 3 of 28



Mr. Limberg said having this piece of equipment allows us to take a proactive approach and
better plan maintenance.

Mr. Strickland said they are getting ready to start the budget process. It would be appropriate
that the Street Department help pay for this.

Mr. Limberg said he would like to keep stuff segregated for maintenance concerns and whose
equipment is it. We all share our equipment based on who needs it. It works better if one
department buys it.

Mr. Strickland felt they can make that happen and it would still be the Water Department’s piece
of equipment.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
approve utilizing the Joinder Provisions of NRS 332.195 with National Joint Powers
Alliance, a Public Agency and Political Subdivision of the State of Minnesota, for the
purchase of an Envirsight RovverX Complete Mobile Inspection Truck, as specified in the
attached supplemental information.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

F. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Professional Services
Agreement with ZGA Architects for design of a new Combined
Water/Sewer/WRF  Shop, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

At the January 23, 2018 meeting, Council directed Staff to negotiate a proposal
with ZGA, and bring back a Professional Services Agreement for possible
Council approval. RL

Mr. Limberg explained the proposal from ZGA was in the packet, with a description of the work
and those items they will be working on. We don’t have construction management in there
because they are just looking for the design of this right now. There are not any travel costs
included either.

*ok A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein,
to approve the Professional Services Agreement with ZGA, in the amount of $248,214.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

G. Review and possible designation of an independent auditor to prepare the annual
audit for the City of Elko for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018, pursuant to NRS
354.624, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Each year, the City is required to designate an independent auditor prior to March
31 of the year in which the audit is to be conducted. The City put out Requests for
Proposals for auditing services for a period of five years, on March 2016, and
awarded the RFP to HintonBurdick, PLLC. JJ

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 4 of 28



Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director, explained this is an annual action. This would be
year three of five of the awarded RFP.

*k A motion Was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
approve HintonBurdick, PLLC, as the City of Elko’s independent auditors for the Fiscal
Year ending June 30, 2018, in an amount not to exceed $54,000.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

H. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a funds transfer from the
Revenue Stabilization Fund to the General Fund for FY18. The Revenue
Stabilization Fund Balance exceeds the limitations as set forth in NRS 345.6115,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City allocates a portion of the excess General Fund balance to three funds at
the beginning of each year as follows:

A) Twenty five percent (25%) to a Revenue Stabilization Fund,
established pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes section 354.6115,
up to the maximum amount allowed.

B) Thirty seven and five-tenths percent (37.5%) to a Capital
Equipment Reserve Fund.

C.) Thirty seven and five-tenths percent (37.5%) to a Facility Reserve
Fund.

The balance in the Revenue Stabilization Fund must not exceed 10 percent of the
expenditures from the General Fund for the previous fiscal year, excluding any
federal funds expended by the local government. We are in a situation where the
fund balance exceeds the limitation by $48,321.60. We would recommend that the
excess funds be transferred to the Street Department to pay expenses incurred by
the local government to mitigate the effects of the natural disaster last year.
Significant asphalt work is still required to complete our projects as defined by
FEMA. These projects were not budgeted in FY'18. JJ

Ms. Jund explained this is the first year we have ever exceeded the fund balance. They discussed
where the money would be most beneficial. She suggested that Public Works should get the
funding to complete the FEMA projects by the end of this year to get the FEMA funding
reimbursement. It wouldn’t matter when we would get the FEMA funding back but we do need
to meet the deadline to complete the work.

Councilwoman Simons asked if we use this money to pay for this and we get reimbursed, will
the Street Department get the money.

Ms. Jund answered when the money comes in, the money will go directly into the General Fund.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 5 0f 28



** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
recommend the transfer of excess Revenue Stabilization Funds to the General Fund for
street repairs.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

L Review, consideration, and possible ratification of Airport Improvement Project
(AIP) 49 Grant Application, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

FAA Grant Application 49 includes upgrading the airport perimeter fence and
electrical vault. The security fence upgrade will bring the entire perimeter fence
into conformance with advisory circulars, and TSA Guidelines. The current
electrical vault is housed in a wood structure. The upgrade would build a flame
retardant structure, replace all constant current regulators, and associated
connections.

Due to application date requirements set by the FAA for 2018, Staff was required
to submit an application to the FAA by January 31, 2018. JF

Jim Foster, Airport Manager, explained this is their next project for the airport. They will
upgrade the perimeter security fence and the electrical vault, which houses all of the regulators
that control all of the airfield lighting.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked when they changed the fencing requirements from six foot to
eight foot.

Mr. Foster said right now the FAA requires it to be seven feet and he didn’t know when that
changed. Right now it is seven feet with three strand another additional foot. Most of our
current fence is at six foot so they are technically out of compliance with the current FAA
standard. The FAA issues cert alerts (Exhibit “A”) and he handed one about wildlife exclusion
fencing, which includes the ten-foot requirement and the eight-foot requirement. We are looking
at doing the eight-foot requirement.

Councilwoman Simons asked if the extra two feet will stop the wildlife.

Mr. Foster answered the wildlife will have to jump the six foot fence and then also jump an
additional eight foot fence with three strand barbed wire. The NDOT fence will remain in place
because they are not allowed to touch that. Eventually the new fence line that will be on the
interior of the airport, reduces our airport operations area significantly down and potentially

opens up that internal airport for future development.

*ok A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, for
ratification of FAA Grant Application No. 3-32-0005-049-0218.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 6 of 28



IV. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible authorization to pursue legal action against
Braemar Construction for continued violations of Title 9 Chapter 6, Illegal
Discharge and Connection to Stormwater, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The City of Elko, as a part of its Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems
(MS4) permit requirements (issued by NDEP) and pursuant to Elko City Code
Title 9, Chapter 6 (Illegal Discharge and Connection to Stormwater), conducts
regular inspections of construction sites throughout the City of Elko. These
inspections are used to verify the contractors’ compliance with the City Code, the
contractors’ Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and the Best
Management Practices (BMP) the contractors must use to minimize storm water
pollution from their construction sites. Last year, construction work began on a
property near Jennings Way and Courtney Drive. Inspections by Staff revealed
that Braemar was operating vehicles in such a manner as to track sediment on
City streets, where it then washes into the City Stormwater System. Furthermore,
Braemar was failing to place sediment barriers around stormwater drain inlets.
These actions were and continue to be in violation of Elko City Code Title 9,
Chapter 6. A Notice of Violation was issued on November 29, 2017, demanding
correction of the violations. Braemar had 30 days to appeal, but it did not do so,
nor did it correct the violations. For the purpose of considering how to direct
Staff, it should be noted that Braemar appears to have a history of violating
certain City requirements in connection with construction projects, which is
demonstrated by past notices, and other documents included in the Council
packet. JD

Mayor Johnson disclosed he has had at least three contracts with Braemar in sale of property and
building of a house. In review of NRS and conflict of interest, he felt that was clearly a conflict
and abstained by turning the gavel over to Mayor Pro Tempore Rice.

Mayor Pro Tempore Rice read the background information of the agenda item.

Jeremy Draper explained there are several representatives from Braemar Construction, as well
as, Adeline Thibault, Environmental Coordinator. Ms. Thibault is who goes out, does a lot of
these inspections and provides the documentation for these Storm Water Inspections. We strive
to work with each of the developers as they begin their construction activities. One requirement
is prior to them starting, if they are disturbing enough ground that they are required to get
permits from NDEP, is to notify staff to come out and take a look at some of their best
management practices that they put in place for the construction activities, make sure that they
are aware of what their permit says, and moving it forward. Braemar Construction has done
several subdivisions throughout the city and there have been many violations of our Elko City
Code Title 9, Chapter 6. He explained the violations and the list of actions. Since 2012 there
have been seven violations issued. The property at Jennings and Courtney, which was recently
annexed into the City of Elko, Braemar Construction failed to obtain the required grading
permits for their grading activities up there. When this was brought to their attention they did

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 7 of 28



submit some plans to us. One of the conditions of the plans was they have excess material that
they will be taking off to other sites. We requested that information prior to issuing a grading
permit. Because they didn’t know where all of the material was going, we issued the permit with
the condition that prior to them removing material from that site, they notify us. They failed to
notify us prior to taking the material off as late as two weeks ago. He notified Dusty Shipp about
that and Mr. Shipp asked what the process was of notifying them. We can start with an email
and we can go from there. We have noticed that Braemar is the only contractor to receive
Construction NOV’s (Notice of Violation). They were notified of this meeting and they are in
attendance with us. The City of Elko does have the MS4 Permit that was issued by NDEP. It
requires us to do periodic inspections of all construction activities within the City to verify
compliance with Storm Water Permits and the City’s MS4 Permit. The Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan that they put together for each of their projects references a responsible person
for the Storm Water best management practices. We work with that person at each of the project
sites. Failure of us to enforce MS4 that is issued by NDEP could result in negative marks on our
audit from NDEP. It can also include fines for the City of Elko. We take this very seriously.
This can also fall under EPA review if it does get serious enough. This is designed to protect the
Humboldt River and other downstream rivers. We are seeking City Council’s consideration to
authorize us to pursue a possible legal action against Braemar Construction for these violations.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, explained the Code does not require Council to have this meeting.
This is a matter of enough seriousness that we felt the Council needed to be the decision maker.
Braemar was served with a notice of violation back in November. The Code provides an
opportunity to appeal and that didn’t happen. The purpose of this meeting is to decide how to
proceed. There are a couple of legal avenues that can be taken at this point. Once is civil and
the other is criminal. In terms of the civil avenues, the Code does not limit what we can do. It
specifically contemplates a couple of things. One is commencing a nuisance action and seeking
injunctive relief. It would fall under the Elko City Nuisance Code. The Nuisance Code
delineates a variety of different acts that constitute a public nuisance, and one of them is placing
offensive material on City streets. The process for pursuing a Nuisance Action does involve
more procedure just because of the way our Code is written. This process takes some time and it
has to come back to Council for the initiation of a civil suit. Tom Coyle is in attendance to
answer questions about a pursuing a criminal complaint. We are at the point of deciding to
pursue a legal action against Braemar Construction. We don’t have to and it would be better if
we don’t.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, said he believes the City’s involvement with the State
and the State’s oversite of the City of Elko and their perception of how we are managing our
program, has brought us to this point. We have had an unresponsive contractor and we have had
quite a bit of involvement with the State throughout the community.

Dusty Shipp, 959 Montrose Lane, Braemar Construction, wanted to review some of the things in
the report. There are six years of records and seven violations noted. If you went through those
records you will see the first few were areas where we had dumped materials in the City street in
the right-of-way. This is a situation where the home is done and built and we typically have a
top soil or landscaping rock being dumped in the City street. The reason we do it in the City
street 1s because at that point the lot we are building on has new sidewalks and we are trying not
to run heavy equipment across there. When this first came about we were home builders and he
wasn’t really aware of how they affected the storm drains. They have since sent a lot of staff to

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 8 of 28



trainings so they understand what needs to be done and what they need to watch for. They have
hired an outside inspector to keep track because they have to do weekly inspections. They own
three sweepers and try to sweep the streets daily. Track-out happens all of the time. We are also
building up to areas that are used for ATV entertainment and the best time to do that is when it is
muddy. Instead of straw waddles around storm drains, that seem to have issues, they have
bought filtration bags to put inside all of the storm drain boxes. It goes inside and catches
everything. It allows traffic to go over without being destroyed. They are costly. He felt they
have tried to be proactive. They have tried to work with the City and resolve issues. He finds it
hard to believe that Braemar is the only developer to be given a notice of violation. They do a
lot of work here. They didn’t appeal the notice in November because they felt it was dealt with.
Every time they have been notified, they have been proactive.

Councilman Keener noted there was a violation as early as two weeks ago.

Mr. Shipp explained they have a project called Golden Hills. That project is low, needing
material. There is also a new project that they want to get started on West Jennings. They
moved material from there to finish up the project out at Golden Hills. He tried to coordinate
and pick a route that was more direct so we had less track-out and traffic flow. We hired a bunch
of other trucks to haul their material that day to minimize the time spent moving the material.
They felt they were doing best management practices.

Mayor Pro Tem Rice asked when a violation has been noticed, what is the follow-up from the
City.

Mr. Draper answered for any of the inspections that they do, Ms. Thibault goes out and does the
inspections. She works with the responsible person on the project site. The first thing she does
is, if she notices something, she tells them they need to correct the problem. She will set up a
follow-up date for that. She does really good to watch the weather to make sure we don’t have
any storms coming up. She tries to get out there before the next storm if there is one coming up.
This instance with Golden Hills, she went back out there and saw there was still track-out on the
road. It’s hard to say if there was sweeping that took place in between. Once we issue the
Notice of Violation, we do the same thing. We set up follow-up dates with them and go out
there and make sure they have taken care of it.

Councilman Keener asked if a contractor is issued a notice of violation, why doesn’t the City
send its own crews out there, do the cleanup and then invoice the contractor.

Mr. Draper answered that is an option within the City Code. They can hire another contractor to
do the work and then invoice them. We give the contractor issued the violation the opportunity
to clean up after themselves first.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked when you do an inspection, you give them a notice saying they
have 24 hours to be in compliance or 48 hours.

Mr. Draper answered 24 or 48 and sometimes it could be up to a week. We look for when the

next storm event is coming. During the rainy season we shorten those up and make sure
everything is in place to reduce any sediment into our storm drain system.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 9 of 28



Councilman Schmidtlein asked Mr. Shipp, where would you grade your company compared to
20127 You have pulled a substantial amount of permits and it is difficult doing a housing
development and avoid track-out, but there is a history that shows there have been issues.

Mr. Shipp answered it is a night and day difference. He didn’t know anything about EPA and
the river initially. It has been a huge education. We watch for things now.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked from a disciplinary standpoint, what would be fair going
forward? What can we do to remedy this?

Mr. Shipp felt the point brought up of fixing it and sending them a bill sounds reasonable.
Councilwoman Simons asked if communication on our side could be better. (Yes)

Mr. Wilkinson said he disagreed with that. Our staff spends a lot of time communicating these
issues. Braemar has been non-responsive. Braemar has trespassed on other property creating
issues. There have been joint inspections with the State on a variety of construction sites
throughout the community. Braemar continually pops to the top on all those joint inspections. It
is creating a problem for the City with the State under our permit. We don’t get Braemar to be
responsive. They trespass on other people’s property. He also disagrees with sending our staff
out to clean up what the contractor should be doing and sending them a bill. The contractor is
responsible to administer that program and make it work.

Councilwoman Simons felt sometimes the State goes to extremes. She does not feel staff is
slacking off.

Mr. Wilkinson said staff has been working with them and if you wanted to continue to do that it
might be appropriate. Maybe some direction that another NOV would initiate staff working with
legal counsel and pursue a criminal complaint. That would demonstrate to the State that we are
taking the program serious and providing staff that direction to enforce our permit the way we
need to do that.

Mayor Pro Tem Rice said whether or not we feel one agency is overreaching, that is a matter to
be argued, but we do have requirements. He heard Mr. Shipp say his organization is trying to
comply. We can’t try, we have to comply. He is sorry it has come to this point. Short of
starting a civil action, how about the development of a performance plan? Is there some way for
Braemar and the City for a performance plan that is specific to the issues that come up. It is kind
of like a probation period but we need assurances that these things will be taken care of. Clearly
something needs to be done that is more than trying to comply.

Councilwoman Simons thought the City should do something before we take legal action so
everybody has had ample chances to step it up. We are going to be the ones left paying the fines.

Mayor Pro Tem Rice said it should be relatively simple to put together a performance plan.
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, said it has been understated the severity of this matter.

'NDOT got in to a huge predicament over this matter. He doesn’t love the regulations but they
are taking it very seriously. NDOT has created a whole storm water division and they watch this

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 10 of 28




stuff like a hawk. Braemar has been a great contractor in the community, but he thought it is the
attention to detail. They are having their reports done but the follow-up isn’t there. This is being
undersold as to how important this is. The State will come back to the City.

Howard Schmidt, 1694 E. Torrey Pines Cir, Draper, UT, Braemar Construction, explained he has
been into Elko for a long time. He has been building for 30 years. Storm water and pollution
prevention has come to light lately. They have learned a lot about it. They do get into a bit of a
hurry sometimes and we can be victim to it. They are putting everyone on notice. They are not
taking this lightly. They appreciate the opportunity to appeal to Council for some grace on this.
He wondered if in that plan, if when Ms. Thibault is going to do an inspection, she give them a
call. Maybe for the next 60 days we can have a regular schedule where one of their guys go out
with Ms. Thibault and see what she sees.

Councilman Schmidtlein said that is their responsibility as a contractor. They shouldn’t rely on
the City and that is what they hired a consultant for. If Ms. Thibault goes out there, she
shouldn’t notify you if she is going to show up.

Mr. Schmidt asked if they could occasionally have a few minutes with her so they are seeing
what she is seeing. We are getting better at this. If they are missing something, they want to
catch it.

Mayor Pro Tem Rice said he was concerned that this is a pattern that has gone on for six years.
We need assurance that compliance is going to happen.

Mr. Stanton pointed out there is a plan, a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan. We also have
the City of Elko Construction Site Best Management Practices Handbook that contains
standards. If there is going to be a plan, he wasn’t sure how they could do that without it being
redundant or contradicting or inconsistent with standards that are already in place.

Mayor Pro Tem Rice said he looks at it as a personnel issue. If someone isn’t performing you
put together a plan. He felt we should direct staff to follow the recommended motion and pursue
legal recourse. He is looking for Braemar to provide the City with concrete assurance that they
will be in compliance going forward. If not we will take legal recourse.

Mr. Stanton said Mr. Wilkinson had a good suggestion earlier. This agenda item is whether or
not to take legal action against Braemar. Mr. Wilkinson suggested that maybe we can do
something in the interim but if there is one more NOV, subject to Braemar’s appeal rights, then
Council is directed to pursue legal action against Braemar.

Mayor Pro Tem Rice thought maybe Braemar needs to consider hiring an environmental person
to be on their sites.

Mr. Draper pointed out the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan that they provide to us for
each site, Braemar prepares that. That is something they should be aware of following. They
have hired Lana Carter for several of their sites, to go out and do their inspections. Ms. Thibault
does spot inspections. She also does scheduled inspections.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 11 of 28



Mr. Wilkinson said council action along that line will demonstrate to the State that the City’s
elected officials and management are serious about Storm Water compliance in the City of Elko.
If they were to make the motion, including the language that Mr. Stanton suggested, subject to
appeal rights, that would be an appropriate course of action.

*k A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein,
with respect to Agenda Item IV. A., to direct staff to work with the contractor on a
corrective action plan, and if there is one more Notification of Violation in the future for
something that has not happened yet, then at that time, subject to Braemar Construction’s
appeal rights, staff is authorized to pursue legal action against Braemar Construction.
The motion passed. (4-0 Mayor Johnson abstained.)
BREAK
VII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. Second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 825, an
ordinance amending Title 3, Chapter 2, of the Elko City Code entitled
“GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE” specifically adding a new Section 29
entitled "Marijuana Establishments and Medical Marijuana Establishments

Prohibited", filed and processed as Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 3-17, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained Council has conducted the First Reading, so this is the
Second Reading, Public Hearing and final step of Ordinance No. 825.

Mayor Johnson asked if there was more information.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said there have been emails and letters received regarding this item.
Mayor Johnson read the emails and letters (Exhibits “B” to “J”).

Councilman Rice read two emails he received (Exhibits “K” and “L”).

Mayor Johnson read an email and an attachment from Sean Fericks (Exhibit “M”).

Tara White read an email she had received from Heidi Marty (Exhibit “N”).

Sean Fericks, 2126 Colonial, asked Councilwoman Simons doesn’t the City Code already
prohibit business licenses for any activity that is against Federal Law.

Councilwoman Simons answered yes.
Mr. Fericks admitted he looked that up on the website. If this is the case and the City of Elko
has already banned cannabis dispensaries in Elko, what is the purpose of the zoning ban if the

goal is already accomplished? Why the redundancy. What is the City trying to accomplish that
is not already accomplished by the current code on business licensure.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 12 of 28




Councilwoman Simons answered a few meetings back this was discussed. It went to Planning
Commission and then came back to us. The Planning Commission said, and it was four to three,
and four of them said they felt this was good, and three of them said they wanted extra measures.
She assumed the thought for most of council was that we want that extra measure in.

Mr. Fericks asked if the City is concerned that someday the Federal Government will make
cannabis legal and then the City wants to actually disagree with the Federal Government and still
keep it out of Elko, even though nationally the drug gets rescheduled.

Councilman Rice admitted his position on this is for the establishment for medical and
recreational marijuana. The reason that we went down the path of the Ordinance was because it
was the only avenue the State provided to prohibit dispensaries in our community, according to
the NRS. He disagrees with the Ordinance but that was what he understood was the reason for it
being drafted.

Mr. Fericks thought the City Council is concerned that the new State law overturns the
provisions for City Business Licenses. Is that the consensus?

Councilman Schmidtlein said it can potentially do that in the forthcoming. The Council has the
right with the NRS statute to decide whether or not to have a dispensary in Elko. The majority of
the people here tonight are here for medical. The ordinance was written originally, for what
everybody voted for, medical and recreational marijuana. That is where he has the biggest
problem. Our community works in a zero tolerance for the Mining Industry. He is not in favor
of recreational marijuana in any way. Everybody seems to put them together. When
Councilman Rice brought forward to put a moratorium on marijuana, it was for medical and
recreational. He mentioned that if it could be broken apart, there would be a possibility he would
vote in favor of a moratorium for the medical side. That is not the way it has been presented. It
opens up a gateway for recreational marijuana use in our community. He does not believe it is in
the best interest for the people in the City of Elko, or the County. The City and County did vote
down the recreational portion. There are needs and improvements coming for medical marijuana
but there are too many unknowns. Science has not proven where this stuff is going for the
future.

Mr. Fericks wondered if the concern is that the State’s law over-rules our City Code that
prohibits a dispensary because it is a violation of Federal Law. Are you worried that State Law
over-rules Federal Law?

Councilman Schmidtlein answered not necessarily. We have the right as a municipality to make
a decision the way the NRS was written.

Mr. Fericks asked Councilman Schmidtlein, one of the concerns that he has heard about seems to
be compliance with DEA scheduling. A lot of people say a cannabis dispensary will not comply
with Federal Law and that is a big concern, especially for the Police who have to decide which
one to enforce. Current City Code is compliant with the DEA’s schedule and that it prohibits
business licenses for any activity that is against federal law. If the City Council passes this
zoning ban and then cannabis is rescheduled as a prescribed medication, schedule 2, which is
highly possible, wouldn’t the zoning ban then clash with the new FDA scheduling? If it were

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 13 of 28



allowed to be dispensed in a regular pharmacy, and we have zoned it out of Elko, then wouldn’t
federal law and City law clash?

Councilman Schmidtlein answered yes, tentatively it would. This Council would have the
obligation to overrule that. He mentioned all along, regarding the pharmaceutical portion of
medical marijuana, he wished it would just be allowed in pharmaceuticals and this would all
have gone away. What is the federal government doing? We as a body here are making our
decisions representing the people of Elko.

Mr. Fericks said the Council is actually making decisions for other people that have real medical
concerns. The thing that concerns him the most is the concern about recreational. He thought
everybody there was concerned a little bit about recreational cannabis, but Council is willing to
throw the gauntlet down. In doing so you cause real harm to people who have real medical
needs and you are going to be the boss of them in this case, instead of letting them run their own
lives.

Mike Sea has been in community since 1993. He is a miner and believes in the no tolerance
policy. He asked Councilman Schmidtlein; don’t we as miners, have a no tolerance policy for
alcohol on the job too? What are you doing to get alcohol out of the community?

Councilman Schmidtlein said marijuana and alcohol have been around for many years. He has
no intentions of banning alcohol in the city limits.

Mr. Sea asked if they are picking and choosing.
Councilman Schmidtlein answered not at all.

Mr. Sea asked do you suppose it is only the recreational crowd that is voting for the use of the
products.

Councilman Schmidtlein answered no but it is piggybacking with the medical portion of it.
Recreational marijuana is not needed in this community.

Mr. Sea thought there is another subject matter on the table and that is medical marijuana.

Edwin Lingar, 1617 Bullion Road, said he works at NYTC. He doesn’t partake (as a federal
employee he is not allowed to) but he has had friends that have used medical marijuana. One
friend in particular has a brain tumor and he has to drive many hours to Reno to get what he
needs to prevent seizures. He understands legislating morality; it’s something we have done a lot
in the history of this country, but it is not something that typically ends well. He also
understands the point of this being a mining community, but shouldn’t the miners have the
option? If they make the wrong choice, they will be fired. We are a nation of choices.

Councilman Keener said it is important to distinguish that we are not prohibiting anyone from
using marijuana. There is a dispensary in Reno that delivers to Elko. According to what they
have on their website, if you purchase $300 or more of product there is no charge for delivery of
that product. Individuals also have the opportunity to grow their own.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 14 of 28




Mr. Lingar asked then what is the point.

Councilman Keener said a majority of City Council does not want recreational marijuana
available in the Elko area. They can approve a medical marijuana facility. Who’s to say our
State Legislature in the next session and put down a requirement that medical marijuana
establishments now have to sell recreational marijuana. We don’t know what the State is going
to do. We as a majority of the Council feel it is a bad influence on our community and there are
so many unknowns that we see more harm than good.

Marcey Logsden, 625 W. Birch' St., said 47% vs the 53%. Forty-seven percent of your
constituents voted for the use of cannabis in this county. How many of you voted yes on this?
Councilman Rice does not represent 47% of us. She is a Registered Nurse by trade and she sees
people daily who do not want to be on pills. They are traveling far and wide to get what they
need so they can get away from opiates and benzodiazepines. It works for them. They are
managing their healthcare. As healthcare providers, we want to shift from chronic maintenance
that is such a burden on our society to being preventative. These people are going out of their
way to better their lives. That helps all of us as taxpayers. Her mother-in-law lost two very dear
people in her life. She was in a room for days and they finally got her eating some goodies.
Now she talks to her grandchildren. This is a big deal. Right now, Canada is on the forefront of
legalizing both medicinal and recreational cannabis use for the entire country. They are boasting
a $5 million surplus into their economy. They want a 50% excise tax, which is crazy. The
country finally agreed to 25% going back into the government. Canada is forecasting a surplus
of $22 billion. She has seen her uncle die of cancer. She has seen his federal physician at a VA
hospital recommend cannabis. It eased his end of life care. If this ban is upheld, she will make it
her life’s mission to make sure there are people in here that are representing the 47% of us that
did vote for it.

Cindy Cordray, 4037 Osage, said alcohol has no medicinal use except to pour it on a wound.
When we tried prohibition, we ended up with so much illegal activity that people were murdered
every day. Right now we have illegal activity in Elko. Whenever we take something illegal and
regulate it, the illegal activity goes down. She is a proponent of medical marijuana.

Sue Kennedy, 2473 Ruby Home Ranch Drive in Lamoille, shared some of her personal
experiences and those of her friend that used medical marijuana. She spoke in favor of a medical
marijuana dispensary.

Gratton Miller, 1024 Barrington Avenue, said he just witnessed several people walking up here,
with one person, through email, deciding that they didn’t want a medical marijuana facility here.
He felt the constituents have spoken.

Christine Gardnerson, 756 Fir Street, said she is a daily cannabis user. She uses it as an
alternative to opioids. She asked the Council to reconsider the ban on a dispensary. This ban is
restricting the access of an herbal medicine to patients that need it.

Steven Ackerly, Carlin, NV, said he sells CBD oil and other forms of pain relief such as Kratom.

He has used it medically for almost a decade after he fell off a water truck. His 13-year-old
daughter uses CBD oil for social anxiety. Medical is very important and needs to be heard.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 15 of 28



Sherry Richens, 1385 Stitzel Road, said we need a dispensary in Elko. We don’t all make
miner’s wages. Most of us live paycheck to paycheck. She has been fighting to stay alive. She
has to go to Reno for main management and to a dispensary. There is no money for this because
she is on Medicaid. Why don’t we open up some kind of research facility to see what you can
actually get from the plant and what can it take care of? These things are being discovered every
day.

Joshua White, 8758 Perry Way, said he was born in Elko, graduated from Spring Creek High
School, has worked in Elko, married in Elko and fathered three beautiful children in Elko. He is
the owner/co-founder with his wife, Tera, of Cannabis Consulting Group, LLC. Spoke in favor
of medical marijuana and expressed his confusion and anger with Council’s actions.

Aaron Hildreth, Police Patrol IV Advanced, School Resource Officer, placed some drug
paraphernalia on the desk in front of the dais. He is compassionate and understands the
medicinal side of cannabis. He wanted to point out a position we are forgetting. He is in the
schools and sees this on a daily basis. His concern is for not so much for those present but for
the kids. When they legalized marijuana for medicinal use, the teen usage rates across the
country and states didn’t change. When the laws were changed for recreational use, the usage
rates have gone up. From his own experience, when they first started this, we did a drug survey
in the schools and as far as the middle and high schools in Elko County were concerned, we were
pretty equal with the national average when it came to kids trying or using marijuana; the 30%
range. Our alcohol usage was also similar to the national averages, up in the 60-70% ranges.
When we accept something as a society, and we say this is okay, we send a message to our
children that usage of marijuana is okay. Our current usage rates have gone up because we send
the message that this is okay but you have to wait until you are twenty-one. When they started
taking the dogs to the schools they would find drug paraphernalia every day. What he placed on
the desk is just a small percentage of what they have found. We have sent a message to our kids
that marijuana is not addictive, and that is false. In the last year where the State has legalized
marijuana, it has undone all that they have done to get drugs out of the schools. Now there are
more drugs. The drugs are in higher quantities. There is more paraphernalia coming in again.
This is becoming a weekly occurrence. Recently this year we had kids, children, bringing
marijuana to school to sell it. It was legal marijuana; marijuana that they had gotten from their
parents. This is because we have sent the message to our kids that this is okay. That is the
wrong message to send. This is what is going on in the schools and it is not getting any better. It
is getting worse.

Mr. White asked if those were the only drugs that were found in the schools.

Officer Hildreth answered all of the drugs had gone down. The alcohol use at school has gone
down. There is an alcohol problem in the community. Marijuana with kids is his new job
security. We do find other drugs in the school. Since he started, it has been in a huge decline but
marijuana has done the exact opposite. We are sending the wrong message to the kids.

Cindy Cordray said you talk about increasing and she understands it is because we are saying it

is okay. How much of that you are seeing is still obtained illegally from dealers vs coming from
the parents that have allowed the children to have it?

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 16 of 28



Officer Hildreth answered he can’t give exact numbers. The largest marijuana bust was
medicinal marijuana. We do have parents that make excuses for it and say they didn’t think it
was a big deal. These kids are not smoking once in a while. The kids they are busting are
smoking every day. Some parents are pro-marijuana parents. Now these parents are saying they
can’t believe what this has done to their kids.

Ms. Cordray asked when you say they are doing this, is it coming from the recreational side or
the medicinal side.

Officer Hildreth said the quality of marijuana is going up and it is more readably available to the
kids. He cannot answer the question. Any way you look at this we are sending a message.
Marijuana is available to the adults and they are selling it to kids. They are going after adults
that are selling to kids. We haven’t had that problem before.

Councilman Rice said two weeks ago he proposed a moratorium. Councilman Schmidtlein said
he would consider it on medical only and go forward with this ordinance on recreational. Is
there an appetite for revising this ordinance to prohibit recreational dispensaries only. The
testimony we heard tonight was about medical marijuana and a desire for a medical marijuana
dispensary in our community.

Mayor Johnson said we should move forward and vote on the second reading. The message is
getting out. When he weighs the benefits to the community and the risk of loss, then he can’t
vote to allow it. Let’s vote on the ordinance. It is easy to change the ordinance. This topic is big
and will continue to be big. To make a change tonight would not be fair.

Councilwoman Simons said we have all said this stuff but she has never used this and she is not
an expert. We have become more educated than we thought we could be. Her opinion has
evolved. Maybe we can all focus on the federal government and force them to put it in the
pharmacies. That sounds like the path and it sounds like people really benefit from it.

Councilman Rice said we can ban the recreational dispensaries in Elko. The current AG
directive has not changed the Cole memo at all. The memo is an interpretation of law. It is not a
priority of the Department of Justice to prosecute medical or any legal marijuana laws anywhere.

Councilwoman Simons said it doesn’t change the law but it says we are not going to prosecute.

Councilman Rice said they cannot look at things in a black and white way. The memo and
Attorney General Sessions latest instruction leaves the discretion prosecution of marijuana laws
up to the states. It is a tool that allows law enforcement to justify their and our own oath to
uphold the constitution. He is suggesting that we revise this ordinance to ban the establishment
of recreational dispensaries in our community and allow the market to provide medical
marijuana dispensaries if the market is there to support it. The testimony tonight shows that
citizens are in favor of at least the establishment of medical marijuana facilities. This has to be a
health and safety of our citizens issue. We are denying our citizens access to medical marijuana
that the rest of the state enjoys.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked if a medical marijuana dispensary opened in Elko, would
recreational marijuana users be able to grow their own.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 17 of 28



The crowd answered yes.

Councilman Keener said the emails and the testimony are very compelling. Bottom line is if we
were to enact the ability to have either medical or recreational marijuana establishments, they
would be violating their oath of office. It is bad policy for the community.

ok A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein, to
reject the Ordinance No. 825 and direct staff to come back to Council with a new
Ordinance entitled: General Zoning Ordinance, specifically adding a new section entitled:
Recreational Marijuana Establishments Prohibited.

The motion was amended below.
Mayor Johnson asked Attorney Stanton how they should handle this item.
Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said if this motion passes, that means we have to start at ground
zero. We can do that. Just because we are having a second reading doesn’t mean you have to
adopt the ordinance. The agenda is to conduct the Second Reading of this Ordinance and it can

be adopted or not adopted.

Mayor Johnson asked, as the motion is presented, do we need to make that motion and vote on
it?

Attorney Stanton asked if he meant the second part of the motion. (yes) To be clear about Open
Meeting Law issues, he thought the better approach would be to adopt it or not adopt it. Just
leave it at that. If a new ordinance is going to come back before the City Council, there is a
separate process for initiating that.

Councilman Rice wanted to be clear. We can vote on this up or down. Let’s say it is down, then
what is the next step?

Councilwoman Simons thought then they can vote on Councilman Rice’s motion.
Attorney Stanton said they can’t do that. There isn’t an agenda item to do that. The first part of
the motion is fine. The second part is outside the scope of the agenda item and a separate

process.

*ok A motion was made by Councilman Rice, without a second, to reject Ordinance No.
825.

The motion was amended below.

There was discussion about how the motion should be worded.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 18 of 28



*x A motion was made by Councilman Rice, without a second, to not adopt Ordinance
No. 825.

The motion was amended below.
Councilman Schmidtlein rescinded his second on the original motion.

*ok A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
not adopt Ordinance No. 825.

The motion failed. (2-3 Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Simons and Councilman Keener
voted against.)

*x A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
adopt Ordinance No. 825.

The motion passed. (3-2 Councilman Rice and Councilman Schmidtlein voted against.)

After the motion and before the vote, Councilman Rice said he stopped short of begging. You
are making a huge mistake if you move forward with this.

Councilwoman Simons asked what about the people that tell us the opposite. In this room it is
hard to imagine.

Councilman Rice noted there was 150 more people in our community that voted against the
establishment of recreational marijuana. Sixty percent of the people in this entire county voted
for medical marijuana.

Council voted on the motion.
BREAK
V. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

A. First Reading of Ordinance No. 826, an ordinance increasing the corporate limits
of the City of Elko, Nevada, pursuant to the provisions of N.R.S. 268.670
annexing thereto a certain tract of land partially contiguous to and not embraced
within the present limits of the City of Elko described as follows: a parcel of land
located northeast of the intersection of Statice Street and Delaware Avenue in
Section 36, T. 35 N., R. 55 E., MDM, Elko County, Nevada, consisting of 62.03
acres, filed by Surebrec Holdings LLC., and processed as Annexation No. 2-17,
and to direct Staff to set the matter for public hearing, second reading, and
possible adoption, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 23, 2018, and

directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to
the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission considered the annexation

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 19 of 28




on February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation of approval
with findings back to Council. CL

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained the applicant is in the audience. We are processing a
rezone concurrent with the application. It is in conformance with our Master Plan land use. We
meet the NRS requirements for annexation. It is a good opportunity to provide light industrial in
that area. They feel it has a positive impact to the city. She recommended approval of the
annexation.

*E A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Keener,
to conduct first reading of Ordinance 826, and direct staff to set the matter for Public
Hearing, Second Reading and possible adoption.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. First Reading of Ordinance No. 827, an ordinance increasing the corporate limits
of the City of Elko, Nevada, pursuant to the provisions of N.R.S. 268.670
annexing thereto a certain tract of land partially contiguous to and not embraced
within the present limits of the City of Elko described as follows: a parcel of land
located on the north side of West Idaho Street approximately 2,500 feet east of I-
80 Exit 298, in Section 19, T. 34 N., R. 55 E., MDM, Elko County, Nevada,
consisting of 3 acres, filed by Swire Coca-Cola USA and processed as
Annexation No. 3-17, and to direct Staff to set the matter for public hearing,
second reading and possible adoption, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 9, 2018, and
directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to
the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission considered the annexation
on February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation of approval
with findings back to Council. CL

Ms. Laughlin explained this property is Swire Coca-Cola. We have worked through a waterline
extension agreement from Cattle Drive to this property. It can be serviced with water and sewer
is septic. They will install dry sewer in the frontage until we can provide a lift station in the area.
They are running a rezone concurrent with this application. She recommended approval of the
annexation.

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 827, and direct staff to set the matter for Public
Hearing, Second Reading and possible adoption.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

V1. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

A. Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 90-day temporary Retail Liquor License
and Caterer’s Liquor License, and issuing a regular Retail Liquor License and

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 20 of 28



Caterer’s Liquor License to Mai Burrows, Jaden Enterprises, LLC dba Cowboys,
located at 442 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

*x A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein,
to ratify a 90-day temporary Retail Liquor License and Caterer’s Liquor License, and issue
a regular Retail Liquor License and Caterer’s Liquor License to Mai Burrows, Jaden
Enterprises, LL.C dba Cowboys, located at 442 Idaho Street, Elko.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

IIIl. APPROPRIATIONS (Cont.)

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
*k A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to

approve the regular warrants.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review and possible approval of Print ‘N Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*ok A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman
Schmidtlein, to approve the Print ‘N Copy warrants.

The motion passed. (4-0 Councilman Keener abstained.)

J. Review, consideration, and possible award of a bid or rejection of all bids for the
Sports Complex Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Council authorized Staff to bid the Sports Complex Project at its November
14, 2017 meeting. Staff revised the project to reduce the scope of the project in an
attempt to ensure adequate funding for a base bid. The base bid was structured to
preserve the following basic components of the project:

Site grading

Wetland construction

Utility installation

Three playing fields

Plaza Development

Parking Lot Development

Sound wall construction

Area landscaping adjacent to the sound wall and Errecart Blvd.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 21 of 28




Field lighting installation was addressed as additive alternates 1 & 2 with the
lights to be owner provided.

Bids were received until 3:00 p.m. on January 29, 2018. Three bids were
received. All bids are well above the budget available for the project. Two of the
bidders were deemed responsive but ineligible for preferential status with the
omission of the required affidavit. The third bidder was deemed unresponsive
with the omission of the qualification information required under Constructed
Wetlands Section 32.7100 (1.3)(E)(1) and (2) and Sports Field Irrigation Section
328425.10 (1.3)(B)(1) and (2). The apparent lowest responsive bidder is Granite
Construction, with a total for the base bid of $12,035,035.00. There was one
minor error on the total amount for bid item 47 presented as $29,000 vs, the
calculated result of $29,400. The base bid amount is reflective of the $29,400.
Staff does not recommend an award without consideration of additive alternates 1
and 2. Consideration of additive alternates 1 and 2 would bring the total award for
consideration to $12,302,035.00. A complete bid tabulation is provided in your
packet.

If this project is awarded, there are additional expenses, outside of this contract, in
the amount of $337, 871.00 to cover the costs for NV Energy, QA/QC testing,
404 permit management, and historical preservation management. This cost does
not include either purchase or lease of field lights. SAW

Mayor Johnson asked if we have a bid the city can award to. Is there an apparent low bidder?

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, answered yes, if you determine the $29,400 error is
minor.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said it is up to the council to decide if that error is a technical
irregularity.

Mayor Johnson said let’s talk about if we are willing to waive the irregularity. Are there any
issues there?

Attorney Stanton said is it a technical minor irregularity that can be waived without giving a
competitive advantage to anybody else.

Councilman Keener said he doesn’t see an issue on this. It is something that can easily be
overlooked.

Mayor Johnson asked do we want to take public comment or hear from staff.

Mr. Wilkinson said the third bidder referenced is Road and Highway. They looked at the
affidavit for preferential status but it did not meet the NRS requirements. None of the bidders
would be eligible for the preferential status. We determined that Road and Highway’s bid is
unresponsive. The two responsive bidders are Granite and Great Basin.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 22 of 28



Councilman Schmidtlein disclosed that his partners in Canyon Construction are owners of Great
Basin. He did not feel he had any pecuniary interest at this time.

Mayor Johnson said when he first heard about the bid numbers coming in he wanted to take a
close look at this. Even though this project is over budget, we have some things that should be
considered and not overlooked. We have a window with a contractor set up, a number in front of
us and we know we will have a completed project. The challenge is that we do not have enough
money to fund it. Once we start breaking up a project there are no guarantees we will see this
closeness in awarding the project. There are places to save money. The City might be able to
save $2 million but the risk is it would have to go back to bid and we would have to push it out.
What will Pennington still fund? As long as the City of Elko keeps the concept of the three
fields, the parking lot and the concession, Pennington is there. There is a chance that if the City
rebid the project, the bids will come in less and the project can still be finished in 2019. The
market is changing and his company is receiving more bid invitations. The construction season
is starting to take off.

Councilwoman Simons asked, when you say bids are starting to come in, is that a seasonal thing.
If we bid it in the fall...

Mayor Johnson answered there is always a strategy when you bid things to try to bid it on a
particular time of year but there is no exact time of year that will be the best.

Mr. Wilkinson said we need a lot of lead-time for possible utility crossing at the river. This
would be a good year to start this.

Mayor Johnson said it is a two year project. There is room to save money and still keep the
donors.

Councilman Keener asked if we could accept this bid and negotiate with the contractor.
Councilman Schmidtlein said we can’t do that.

Councilman Keener noted that we cannot afford this and he didn’t understand why this is a
conversation.

Nate Johnson, Granite Construction, asked if they could do deductive change orders? The
regional managers said they are available to help to keep within the budget or figure out what
could be done.

Mr. Stanton said you cannot consider that in your decision to award. After the bid is awarded
there might be things you can do. You can’t do that now. It is not competitive bidding if you do
that.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said he is disappointed in the Architect’s estimate. We have built
the project around the estimate and found the resources using that estimate. For him it gets down
to the estimate being way off. The economy plays into this too. We hearing on the western side
of the State that all of their projects are coming in 15%-20% higher. He can’t come up with $2
or $3 million dollars to make this project work. His opinion is the only option would be to reject

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 23 of 28



and go out and rebid in a timely manner and hope that we can get closer to the original
engineer’s estimate.

Councilman Schmidtlein said there are many ways to save money on this project. You need to
go through and read the specifications. We cannot afford to award this project. We have to live
within our means.

Rk A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
reject all bids.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

K. Review, consideration, and possible authorization to restructure and rebid the
Sports Complex Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Council authorized Staff to bid the Sports Complex Project at its November
14, 2017 meeting. Bids were received until 3:00 p.m. on January 29, 2018. Three
(3) bids were received. All bids are well above the budget available for the
project. Staff believes the project could be restructured and rebid based upon
available resources and project timing. For example, a realistic bid package for
the 2018 Construction Season could include:

Site grading

Installation of Electrical Utilities (with some items omitted)

Wetland Mitigation

Water source to wetlands

Storm Drainage Infrastructure Ultility installation

Installation of Field Lighting Infrastructure (foundations, bases, conduit,

etc.)
. Sound Wall construction

Additional owner costs of approximately $300,000.00 to cover the costs for NV
Energy, QA/QC testing, 404 permit management, and historical preservation
management are projected. This cost does not include either purchase or lease of
field lights, which would be deferred until the next budget cycle. SAW

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, said initially they pulled out $1.2 million of
components to the project when they went out for the first bid. We added those as additive
alternates. As we move forward we looked at what can be removed completely from the project,
still maintain the basic elements, do the wetlands mitigation and grade the entire property. They
went over more to decide what they can remove. They took some of the components and put
them as add alternates. We made the assumption that we could reduce the costs of the fields by
$850,000. The consultants have verified that we can expect about $1million. They took all of
the concrete and planters out of the plaza area. There would just be gravel between the fields.
He explained to Council what they think they can put together as a bid package with additive
alternates.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 24 of 28



Councilman Keener asked if this is approved tonight, how long until it is ready to go out to bid.
Mr. Wilkinson answered maybe a week to a week and a half.

Mayor Johnson felt the City Manager’s office should dedicate full resources to getting this
project where we can get a bid back turned around in the next month. He wants to see a plan
presented to City Council that can be finished.

Councilman Schmidtlein felt they need to cut $3 million off this. There were three bids that
were within 5% of each other. If you read the specifications, you will find ways to value
engineer and save money.

Mayor Johnson recommended staff talking to the local contractors to get their opinions.

Curtis Calder said time is of the essence. Two weeks would be the longest we would want to
wait to go out to bid. In between now and the next meeting we can work on this.

Ambrosia Anderson, Rockin A Electric, said they provided estimates to all three of the bidders.
Her estimator went through this with a fine toothed comb. This is definitely a Bentley and they
see ways the City can save money.

ok A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein,
to direct the City Manager and his staff, committing full resources toward preparing the
bid specifications to go out for rebid on the Elko Sports Complex, and to have a report and
recommendations for Council for the second February 2018 meeting.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
IV. NEW BUSINESS (Cont.)

B. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2017 Annual Report of
Planning Commission Activities, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE

ACTION
Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning Commission is required to
prepare and present an Annual Report of its activities to the City Council. On
February 6, 2018, the Planning Commission took action to approve the 2017
Annual Report of Planning Commission Activities and forward it to the Council.

CL

ok A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman
Schmidtlein, to table New Business Item B., the Planning Commission Report.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

After the motion and before the vote, Mayor Johnson moved on to the next agenda item.

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 25 of 28




C. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Staff’s response to noted
violations of statute and/or regulations in relation to the Fiscal Year 2017 Annual
Audit, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City violations are noted in the Fiscal Year 2017 letter from Hinton Burdick.
Staff is required to respond to these violations with corrective actions, which must
be approved by Council. JJ

Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director, said this is an annual thing. There was an issue
with non-compliance. The letter states that we had a non-compliance and our corrective action is
to discuss with managers about the limit that can be paid to a Councilmember’s business in a
one-month period.

kK A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
approve the letter to the Nevada Department of Taxation, dated February 13, 2018, as
presented by Jonnye Jund.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

After the motion and vote, Dave Stanton, City Attorney, reminded Council that there was a
motion made on the previous item and there had not been a vote.

Council voted on the previous agenda item motion.
V. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (Cont.)

C. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 05-18, a
resolution amending various fees related to Ruby View Golf Course pursuant to
Elko City Code, Title 8, Chapter 13, Section 3, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Golf Course Financial Advisory Committee took action to recommend
amending various fees at Ruby View Golf Course on February 5, 2018. A draft
resolution has been included in the agenda packet for review. JW
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, explained the committee took a good look at the
rates and fees charged at the Ruby View Golf Course. He went over the recommended changes.

It was also recommended that these changes become effective April 1, 2018.

** A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilman Keener, to adopt
Resolution No. 05-18, amending fees charged for Ruby View Golf Course.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

M. APPROPRIATIONS (Cont.)

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 26 of 28



E. Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit bids for the Effluent Reuse
and Sanitary Sewer Railroad Bores and Humboldt River Crossing to the New
Sports Complex, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

This portion of the project was not completed last year as part of the Effluent
Reuse Pipeline and Sewer to the Elko Sports Complex Project. Staff is seeking
Council approval to rebid the work. RL

*x A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman
Schmidtlein, to table.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
VI. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS (Cont.)

B. Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and
Wine License and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua
Hunt and Joseph Hunt, dba Idaho Street Station, LLC, located at 1600 Idaho
Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*k A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
table Petitions, Appeals, and Communications Items B and C.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

C. Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and
Wine License and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua
Hunt and Joseph Hunt, dba Idaho Street Station, LLC, located at 1600 Idaho
Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

See the motion above.
VIII. REPORTS

A. Mayor and City Council

Councilman Keener met with the Police Department today, as part of the
newly assigned liaison positions, and looks forward to meeting with Don
Newman on Friday of this week. He asked Curtis Calder, regarding the
municipalities being subject to sales tax on certain purchased items, how does
that come into play? Curtis Calder answered in general, what the legislature
did a few sessions ago, there were some local governments involved in Public
Works Projects that were buying the materials tax free using their local
government exemption, and then giving those materials to the contractor in
order to circumvent the sales tax laws. We have long lead times on equipment
where we might have to have a piece of equipment constructed six months
ahead of time, so when the contractor is ready to install it, it is ready. The
Legislature provided a small window for those types of things, but generally, a

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 27 of 28



local government cannot go out and purchase the materials tax exempt and
then give them to a contractor for a Public Works Project.
B. City Manager
Curtis Calder reported on the sales tax report through the month of
November (Exhibit “O”). We have been above our budget every single
month. We are trending 10% over what was estimated.
Assistant City Manager
Utilities Director
Ryan Limberg said there are six or seven big capital projects ongoing.
Public Works
Airport Manager
City Attorney
Fire Chief
Police Chief
City Clerk
Shanell Owen said filing for office will be March 5" through the 16™.
City Planner
Cathy Laughlin said there are four rezones coming to the next meeting
and there will be several Public Hearings. Stacey Payne, Lyfe Recovery
Services, continues to be non-compliant with the City rules and code. She is
still getting complaints from the neighbors, and they are mostly related to
parking.
Development Manager
Administrative Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director
Civil Engineer

Building Official

CAa

SrEomm

7

voZEZr

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

There were no public comments.

There being no further business, Mayor Chris Johnson adjourned the meeting.

Mayor Chris Johnson Shanell Owen, City Clerk

02/13/2018 City Council Minutes Page 28 of 28



Agenda Item ITL.B.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit bids for the Effluent
Reuse and Sanitary Sewer Railroad Bores and Humboldt River Crossing to the New
Sports Complex, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27, 2018

Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION

Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information: This portion of the project was not completed last year as
part of the Effluent Reuse Pipeline, and Sewer to the Elko Sports Complex Project.
Staff is seeking Council approval to rebid the work. RL

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required:
Budget amount available: $677,000.00 + 393,000.00 = 1.07M
Fund name: Sewer

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information:

Recommended Motion: Move to approve soliciting bids.

Prepared by: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director

Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 02/13/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item HI.C.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval to award a bid for the City of
Elko Water Main Removal and Replacement Project, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: February 27, 2018
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: 3 Minutes
Background Information: Council directed Staff to solicit bids for this project on
January 9, 2018. A Bid Tally Sheet is included as supplemental agenda information.
RL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $196,120.00

Budget amount available: $297,000.00

Fund name: Water
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Bid Tally Sheet
Recommended Motion: Make a finding that there was a minor technical defect on
line item #3 of the Sierra Nevada Excavation Bid, which does not affect the total
cost, or create a competitive advantage for the contractor, waive the technical
defect, and further move to approve Award of Bid to Sierra Nevada Excavation.
Prepared by: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 02/14/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1






Agenda Item IILD.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Professional Services
Agreement with Aqua Engineering for Construction Management related services
on the Secondary Clarifier #3 Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27,2018

Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION

Time Required: 3 Minutes

Background Information: Council directed Staff to solicit bids for this project at the
November 28, 2017 meeting. Bids will be opened on March 6, 2018. RL

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: $153,400.00
Budget amount available: 3M
Fund name: Sewer
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Proposal and PSA with Aqua Engineering
Recommended Motion: Move to approve PSA with Aqua
Prepared by: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 02/15/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1o0f 1



AQUA

ENGINEERING

February 14, 2018

Mike Haddenham
City of Elko

1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801

Re: Elko Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Secondary Clarifier #3 — Construction Scope
of Services

Dear Mr. Haddenham:

AQUA Engineering (AQUA) thanks you for this opportunity to work with the City on the
construction phase of the Elko WRF Secondary Clarifier #3 project. AQUA has developed a
scope of services as follows:

Scope of Services:

1. Construction Services — AQUA will provide the following services during the
construction phase of the project. It is estimated the project will require approximately
six (6) months to be constructed. AQUA will assist the City as detailed in the following
items:

a. Altend pre-construction meeting. AQUA will attend the pre-construction meeting.

b. Attend and participate in progress meetings on a monthly basis or as requested by
the City. AQUA will attend monthly progress meetings and help coordinate the work
associated with this project. Currently we have budgeted for six (6) meetings.

c. Construction Observation. AQUA will provide construction observation for this
project on a daily basis by having a local inspector (Black Dolphin Consulting LLC.)
who will check in on the project daily. A weekly report will be generated describing
daily activities including photos. The inspector will also help coordinate questions,
RFls, and so forth. We have budgeted to provide an inspector for an average of
eight (8) hours a day during the six months when onsite construction work will be
performed.

d. Review Pay Requests and Change Orders. AQUA will review and provide
recommendations for the contractors monthly pay request. Additionally, we will
assist the City in reviewing and processing project change orders.

e. Review all submittals and requests for information. AQUA and SKM will review all of
the project submittals and respond to requests for information (RFls). Submittals
will be reviewed for overall compliance with the project plans and specifications.
Clarifications or resubmittals will be requested as needed to approve submittals. We
have estimated that we will review 46 submittals and 10 Requests for Information
(RFI's).

f. Startup and Commissioning. Working with the City and the Contractor, AQUA will
help coordinate the startup and commissioning.

g. Final Punch List. AQUA will review the constructed project and prepare a final punch
list with input from the City for the Contractor to complete prior to issuance of final
payment.

Page 1 0f 3



h. Coordinate QA/QC Testing. AQUA (Black Dolphin Consulting LLC) will coordinate
any materials testing as required by the project. It is estimated that 16 concrete
samples will be tested along 47 Soil Density Tests and One Concrete Shrinkage test.

i. Prepare As-Constructed Drawings. AQUA will require the Contractor to keep and
maintain an accurate and up-to-date set of as-constructed redlines during the
construction phase of the project. This includes all sub-contracted work, especially
electrical and will be done neatly and legibly on a full size set of contract drawings.
Upon completion of the project, we will update the electronic documents (drawings
and technical specifications) and provide the City with one (1) set of half-size
drawings (unbound), one (1) set of technical specifications (unbound) and an
electronic set of the drawings and technical specifications (pdf format).

j-  Update O and M manual. AQUA will update the master O and M manual as required
to include the specific information for equipment and process changes at completion
of the project.

k. Final Certification. AQUA will provide a project certification letter at the completion of
the project indicating project conformance with the design intent of the Contract
Documents.

AQUA proposes a project budget of $153,400.00 for this scope of services, to be billed on a
time and materials basis at the rates and fees shown in the attached Table A and not to exceed

without the owner’s approval. Any additional services requested in excess of those listed above
will also be performed using these rates and fees. Invoicing will occur on a monthly basis.

If additional information is required please let me know. Again, we look forward to working with
you on this project.

Sincerely,
AQUA Engineering

Justin R. Logan, P.E.
Principal

Cc File

Page 2 of 3




TABLE A

Position Hourly Rate
Principal Engineer $135
Project Engineer $120
Engineer $90
Senior Designer $90
Designer 11 $70
Clerical $45
Construction Manager $110
AQUA Mileage: $0.55/mile

Inspector Vehicle Charge: $120/week

Additional Testing: $75/hour

Page 3 of 3




Agenda Item IILE.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to award a bid for the City of Elko
WRF Reuse Water Fill Station, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27, 2018

Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION

Time Required: 3 Minutes

Background Information: Council directed Staff to solicit bids for this project on
December 12, 2017. A bid tally sheet is attached. RL

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $121,098.01
Budget amount available: $350,000.00
Fund name: WRF

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Bid Tally Sheet

Recommended Motion: Move to award a bid for the WRF Reuse Water Fill Station
to Ruby Dome, Inc. in the amount of $121,098.01.

Prepared by: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 02/20/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



CITY OF ELKO
BID TABULATION
FOR
WRF - REUSE WATER FILL STATION
February 16, 2018

CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR
Name Ruby Dome Inc Acha Construction Faulstich & Rand KAP-Mechanical Remighton Construction c;?,at,ac::'; naineerng
Address 6525 E. ldaho St. 1042 Commercial St. PO Box 2703 809 Industrial Blvd. PO Box 1616 PO Box 396
City State Elko, NV 89801 Elko, NV 89801 Elko, NV 89803 Elko, NV 89801 Elko, NV 89803 Elko, NV 89803
Phone 775-738-2154 775-777-3575 775-738-7463 775-738-1908 775-738-6156 775-738-1176
Fax No.
1}Mobilization 1 LS $ 9,700.00 $9,700.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00] 1$1,575.00 $1,575.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00] }$15,090.10 $15,090.10 $6,598.90 $6,598.90
2{Demolish Existing Concrete Pad at Dump 144 SF $ 25.00 $3,600.00 $6.00 $864.00 $17.37 $2,501.28 $18.50 $2,664.00 $5.00 $720.00 $13.76 $1,981.44
3|Remove existing Wire Fence 180 LF $ 5.00 $900.00 $5.00 $900.00 $5.56 $1,000.80 $3.00 $540.00 $3.50 $630.00 $4.13 $743.40
4|Clearing & Grubbing 0.70 Acre $ 2,000.00 $1,400.00 $1,714.29 $1,200.00] | $2,571.43 $1,800.00 $7,150.00 $5,005.00 $2,000.00 $1,400.00 $1,901.66 $1,331.16
5|Borrow Embankment 780 cY $ 24.00 $18,720.00 $30.00 $23,400.00 $27.41 $21,379.80 $11.00 $8,580.00 $45.00 $35,100.00 $48.48 $37,814.40
6{8" Tickened Edge Reinforced Concrete Pad | 1144 SF $ 13.00 $14,872.00 $17.00 $19,448.00 $20.72 $23,703.68 $24.50 $28,028.00 $15.00 $17,160.00 $25.81 $29,526.64
7|Pavement Saw Cut 150 LF $ 3.00 $450.00 $2.60 $390.00 $6.00 $900.00 $4.00 $600.00 $4.00 $600.00 $6.37 $955.50
8]4-Inch A.C. Pavement 5577 SF $ 4.12 $22,977.24 $3.60 $20,077.20 $5.65 $31,510.05 $5.00 $27,885.00 $4.70 $26,211.90 $4.60 $25,654.20
9|12 - Inch A.C. Type 2, Class B Agg. Base 6721 SF $ 212 $14,248.52 $2.50 $16,802.50 $2.34 $15,727.14 $2.48 $16,668.08 $3.00 $20,163.00 $2.40 $16,130.40
10{Gravel Shoulder 530 LF $ 4.40 $2,332.00 $8.00 $4,240.00 $3.78 $2,003.40 $13.22 $7,006.60 $4.00 $2,120.00 $9.94 $5,268.20
11|Seal Coat 620 Sy $ 0.90 $558.00 $5.50 $3,410.00 $0.95 $589.00 $0.60 $372.00 $0.40 $2438.00 $0.46 $285.20
12(6" C-900 DR 18 Pipe 227 LF $ 44.00 $9,988.00 $47.00 $10,669.00 $61.65 $13,994.55 $49.00 $11,123.00 $80.00, $18,160.00 $73.41 $16,664.07
13| Trenching & Backfill for 16" X 6" Hot Tap 1 EA $ 3,510.00 $3,610.00 $786.00 $786.00] |$1,275.00 $1,275.00 $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,812.19 $1,812.19
14/6" Ductile Iron 22.5 Degree Bend (mj X fig) 1 EA $ 550.00 $550.00 $784.00 $784.00 $475.00 $475.00 $750.00 $750.00 $220.00 $220.00 $361.42 $361.42
15]6" Ductile Iron 11.25 Degree Bend (flg x mj) 1 EA $ 550.00 $550.00 $836.00 $836.00 $475.00 $475.00 $800.00 $800.00 $200.00 $200.00 $275.06 $275.06
16{6"X4" Ductile Iron Adaptor (mj x fig) 1 EA $ 600.00 $600.00 $1,022.00 $1,022.00 $350.00 $350.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $362.00 $362.00 $679.24 $679.24
17]4" Ductile Iron 90 Degree Bend (flg x mj) 1 EA $ 550.00 $550.00 $732.00 $732.00 $370.16 $370.16 $775.00 $775.00 $505.00 $505.00 $457.30 $457.30
18[4" Ductile Iron Pressure Class 350 Pipe 5 EA $ 116.00 $580.00 $160.20 $801.00 $120.00 $600.00 $200.00 $1,000.00 $85.00 $425.00 $144.05 $720.25
19[4" Adaptor (mj x flg) 1 EA $ 400.00 $400.00 $466.00 $466.00 $350.00 $350.00 $500.00 $500.00 $980.00 $980.00 $284.33 $284.33
20|8" ADS N-12 Pipe 54 LF $ 60.00 $3,240.00 $59.00 $3,186.00 $34.75 $1,876.50 $35.00 $1,890.00 $70.00 $3,780.00 $105.91 $5,719.14
21(24"X24" Drop Inlet 1 EA $ 3,200.00 $3,200.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00] | $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $4,800.00 $4,800.00 $4,250.00 $4,250.00 $4,403.21 $4,403.21
22|Connection to Sewer Manhole 1 EA $ 1,800.00 $1,800.00 $900.00 $900.00] |$1,850.00 $1,850.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $5,223.07 $5,223.07
23|Bollards 2 EA $ 800.00 $1,600.00 $436.50 $873.00 $925.00 $1,850.00 $800.00 $1,600.00 $600.00, $1,200.00 $768.43 $1,536.86
24|T Post & Wire Fence 303 LF $ 15.75 $4,772.25 $13.50 $4,090.50 $9.88 $2,993.64 $17.00 $5,151.00 $10.00 $3,030.00 $18.33 $5,553.99
TOTAL BASE BID $121,098.01 $126,377.20 $132,950.00 $135,837.68 $155,555.00 $169,979.57




Agenda Item IILF.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible award of the bid for the Cedar Street
Reconstruction Project Phase II, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27, 2018
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: § Minutes

Background Information: This item has been approved and budgeted for in the
2017/18 Fiscal Year Budget, Capital Construction Fund. DS

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $1,500,000.00 to $1,700,000.00

Budget amount available: $1,301,776.00

Fund name: Capital Construction; Additional anticipated revenues of
approximately: $250,000 in ad valorem tax to be collected; 300,000 from the
Y4 cent Elko County sales tax available September 1, 2018; and $50,000 from
NV Energy franchise agreement; for a total approximate amount of
$1,901,776.00 available by October of 2018.

Business Impact Statement:
Supplemental Agenda Information: A bid tabulation will be provided at the meeting

Recommended Motion: Award the bid for the Cedar Street Reconstruction Project
Phase II to

Prepared By: Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Lana Carter
lanalcarter @live.com

Created on 02/14/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1




























































Agenda Item V.A.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a letter of resignation
from Mr. Aaron Martinez from the Planning Commission, and to further authorize

Staff to commence with the standard recruitment process to fill the vacancy on the Planning
Commission, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27, 2018
Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 10 Minutes
Background Information: This resignation is a result of Mr. Martinez no longer living
within the City of Elko. Mr. Stanton has provided a legal opinion stating that not
residing within the boundary of the City of Elko would disqualify Mr. Martinez
from being appointed to the Planning Commission. CL
Budget Information;

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Letter of Resignation

Recommended Motion: Accept the resignation of Planning Commission member
Aaron Martinez, and direct Staff to begin the recruitment process.

Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:
Agenda Distribution: Aaron Martinez
445 5t Street Suite 201

Elko, NV 89801
aaron @ amengineering.pro

Created on 02/21/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



2/21/18

Mr. Wilkinson,

I am regrettably writing this Letter of Resignation to the City of Elko - Planning Commission. My
resignation is due the understanding that my family building a home in Elko County has disqualified me
as a participant on the commission. | believe the City attorney has issued a memo refiecting his opinion
of NRS, and that opinion is the basis of my resignation.

Initially, | looked to challenge the opinion because of my philanthropic passion and to finish the goals |
set out to achieve 5 years ago. | would have approached the challenge in hopes of a reasonable
understanding that my residence in the Summit Estates (Elko County) would qualify. Additionally, | am
currently closing on a City of Elko commercial parcel / building and currently own a local business,
renting in the City of Elko and own a City of Elko single family residence.

Nonetheless, | have been advised that | would eventually lose that battle. With that, thank you all so
much for the amazing discussion, collaboration and professionalism. It was an amazing opportunity
serving the City of Elko residents as a volunteer on the Planning Commission.

Regards,

Aaron Martinez



Agenda Item VL A.
‘ Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to approve Curb, Gutter, and

10.

11.

12.

13.

Sidewalk Waiver No. 1-18, filed by Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LL.C, which
waives the requirement for curb and gutter on the north side of West Idaho Street
abutting APN 001-679-011, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27, 2018

Agenda Category: PETITION

Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: Per Elko City Code Section 2-13-3, public improvements are
required when vacant lots are developed. The applicant has submitted application for
a permit for development of the parcel. NDOT has reviewed the need for curb and
gutter at this location and has determined that it is not needed to control drainage in
this area. Staff recommends approval of the waiver for curb and gutter with sidewalk

still being required. JD

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff Report, Application, letter from NDOT

Recommended Motion: Approve Curb, Gutter, and Sidewalk Waiver No. 1-18 for the
waiver of curb and gutter along West Idaho Street abutting APN 001-679-011

Prepared By: Jeremy Draper, PE, Development Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC

16580 Wedge Parkway #300
Reno, NV 89511

Created on 02/21/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



* CITY OF ELKO

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
* 1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
* ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX

To:  Elko City Council

From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager

RE: CGS 1-18, Golden Gate Petroleum, 3600 W. ldaho St
Date: February 21, 2018

The City of Elko Development Department has reviewed the waiver application for Curb,
Gutter and Sidewalk as presented by Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC for the
waiver of curb and gutter along W. ldaho St, a NDOT right of way.

The following correspondence is to aid the City Council's review of the application to
Waive Curb and Gutter Installation required under City Code 2-13-3.

Property Assessment

1. The property is identified as APN 001-679-011, located at 3600 W. Idaho St.

2. The property is zoned C-General Commercial.

3. Elko City Code 2-13-3 requires the installation of curb, gutter and sidewalk when
any new construction is completed, or a parcel map merging of dividing a parcel
is recorded. Plans for a building on this property have been submitted through
the building department for review.

4. The applicant has provided a copy of a memo from NDOT indicating that they do
not need curb and gutter installed at this time to convey drainage, they are in
support of requiring a pedestrian path. Elko City Code 2-13-3-C requires that
evidence be presented showing that it is impractical to install cub, gutter and
sidewalk because of circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the
applicant. Based on information from NDOT it appears that this requirement is
satisfied.

5. Elko City Code 3-2-17-B-3-d, requires Civil Improvements to be completed
across the full frontage of the property prior to access being granted. Civil
improvements within the Idaho Street right of way will require NDOT approval.

6. Elko City Code 3-2-B, public street and utility construction and installation is
required across the full frontage of property at time of development.

7. West Idaho Street is identified as a Major Arterial, in the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan.

U:\Community Development\Planning\Waiver\2018\CGS 1-18 Golden Gate W Idaho St.docx
Created by Jeremy Draper



Page 2 of 2
Findings

1. The applicant indicates that have a copy of a letter from NDOT stating that curb
and gutter at this location is not required to control drainage.

2. The applicant has submitted plans, which are under review, for the installation of
a gas station and convenience store at this location.

3. The applicant provided evidence regarding the impracticality of installing curb
and gutter along W. Idaho St, Elko City Code 2-13-3. The right of way is under
NDOT control, NDOT does not require the same improvements as the City of
Elko as part of their Access Management.

4. NDOT states that as a condition of the permit for access granted to Golden Gate
NDOT will include a requirement that the construction of these improvements if
they are ever constructed adjacent to them will be required of the property owner.

5. The Master Plan identifies W. Idaho Street as a Major Arterial roadway,
completion of the improvements along W. idaho Street is consistent with the
Master Plan, with consideration for NDOT requirements within their right of way.

Recommendation

The Development Department recommends approval of this waiver based on the
findings presented

The Engineering Department recommends approval of this waiver based on the
supporting evidence from NDOT.

The Public Works Department recommends approval of the waiver based on the
supporting evidence from NDOT.




X City of Elko
X 1751 College Avenue

X Elko, NV 89801
*” (775) 777-7160
FAX (775) 777-7119
CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT
MEMO DATE: February 21, 2018
CITY COUNCIL DATE: February 27. 2018
APPLICATION NUMBER: CGS 1-18
APPLICANT: Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Exit 298 and West Idaho Street

A Waiver for curb and gutter for the development of a truck stop located off West Idaho Street,
NDOT jurisdiction

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, conditions and waivers.

PROJECT INFORMATION
PARCEL NUMBER: 001-679-003
PROPERTY SIZE: 7.821 acres
EXISTING ZONING: C — General Commercial was approved but conditions are to
be met prior to the mayor signing the resolution
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (COMM-HWY) Commercial Highway
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by undeveloped land to the north, south, and west. Developed with
Industrial uses to the east.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is currently undeveloped.

The property is generally flat with no unusual conditions.

The property is accessed from West Idaho Street, which is under NDOT jurisdiction
The property is not in the floodway and flood zone.

Page 1 of 3



CGS 1-18
Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada
APN: 001-679-003

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component

City of Elko Section 2-13-3 — Sidewalk, Curb and Gutter Construction

City of Elko Section 3-2-17 — Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) was approved for the proposed use of the property.
The area is zoned General Commercial

The area is located near the I-80 exit 298.

The property is identified as APN 001-679-003

The property is owned by the applicant.

The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area

MASTER PLAN

Land Use
1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Commercial Highway.

2. C- General Commercial is a corresponding zoning district for the Commercial Highway
designation.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use component states ‘“Promote orderly, sustainable growth and
efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the needs of all
residents and visitors”.

4. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and for major
centers and corridors, to ensure the area’s adaptability, longevity, and overall sustainability.

5. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of the
region, the community, and that of individual neighborhoods.

6. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide natural

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose
a danger to human health and safety.

Transportation

1. The area will be accessed from West Idaho Street.

2. West Idaho Street is referred to as State Route 535 and is under NDOT jurisdiction. NDOT has
provided documentation requesting the curb and gutter not be installed along the frontage of this
parcel as they feel it is not necessary to accommodate the drainage.

Page 2 of 3



CGS 1-18
Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada
APN: 001-679-003

Objective 1: Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates vehicles, bicycles, and
pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent land uses.

Objective 5: Implement and maintain a pavement management system and curb, gutter, and
sidewalk construction/maintenance program to protect the investment in existing roads.

SECTION 2-13-3 SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER CONSTRUCTION:

1.

Sidewalks, curbs and gutters shall be required on all vacant lots or parcels of land which are
hereafter developed; or upon lots or parcels of land which are merged or divided.

Any request by the city development department to waive all or part of the requirement to install
curb, gutter and sidewalk shall be based on the following criteria: 1) the presence or proposed
installation of other substantially equivalent or superior improvements in the vicinity of the lot or
parcel of land, 2) conditions on the lot or parcel of land affecting the practicability of installing
the curb, gutter and sidewalk and 3) any other factors deemed by the city development department
to be appropriate grounds for waiving any or all of the foregoing requirements relative to the
installation of curb, gutter and sidewalk.

The letter from NDOT should be considered as evidence required to meet the request to waive
requirements.

SECTION 2-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS:

1.

Civil Improvements Required: All civil improvements required pursuant to this code (to include,
without limitation, title 8, chapter 18, "Public Improvement Standards", of this code) shall be
completed on the full frontage of the lot, parcel or tract of real property prior to the granting of
access to any city right of way or easement. Civil improvements shall be consistent with the
public improvements identified in chapter 3 or 5 of this title whichever is applicable and satisfy
all other requirements of this code. All civil improvements are to be approved by the city of Elko
and constructed by a properly licensed contractor and certified by a properly licensed engineer.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CGS 1-18 with waiver for curb and gutter only, sidewalk will still be
installed

Page 3 of 3



50 W7 G126 BIN/IE/1 DapLo AR I5CT IONBREAINT 1595 - SIBI0UbR4 IADY UIIODNENZ 5338/ Cad PUIROID 5.0, N

. NVId HLIS

f2 I I

~ 52

J °s g _ Y —r — 5

& =5 as| _— N — — — e — £ D
&8 ] NS 5 Sy s v vy

FRELEN £ 3akd 70 YRR 34 /n RS

g8 - aauno k3TN »x?nna.

§ sl
s

S 3$5 }

A
ZIHOH

=T

T IOFT__ oM gor

“UOITE oM JMG

M LALEPSEC N

o¥1a

AINNOD OXTZ
NVId ALIS
SONIMVEA NOILONYISNOD 3lLis
KNFI0HLAd 3LV NATIOD
L079ax

YaVATN

TN 1 2D SHLUNYID NN TIV RS0
TS MOLOVAINGD  ATNG SHCS NOUYIRIOM 403 RN SHUNNDD TUYMIST

SIVLI0 OV SHYY INOWR H03 SOV WALITHONY SHRALY T
TN FSMUIUO ST BUD 0 XOVE i OF SHOSITWE TV 21
NUOMS SV SONDIVIY T0VeS SYROWVH ONY DNRLLS F0M0MS 15

LIS WL TN NOUKT ZIOE I000 TS TYNO VRGN I 0 NOLITI0MS
1V TOMM, ZIE NOXIIT K0 SINWOWIR I LTI TIVHS SGHVTOS O

9w ssaov o
SOV MOV IO T LY QY I8 G LIFE TAI) 830 SNOE NIDH B

‘A8 Navya

N | v | A8 | EnrT g aaNoisad

A8 QANIZHI

A8 GIACHALY

v 82 v 84
0007 10 IONDLS ISSTIINOO WM ¥ J040%S TIVHS ONV IOV 3 50 Frven v
TN 3 TIVHS SYTRIOS SAILID SBMO 404 UTONDD INGRGO OWTINOd 9

207 TAVIRVF v
HIL
[:f224

AMVSSION Sv AIIOW VS ATklY
W ASeD DIT D VY ¥ IV ey V00 IS W04 (¥R S0 IO 03
N e QR0 VY GRESYWT i-55 35N XTIV 36 01 SIVAS NS

z
SOVAND ONY INDTVILS UV SUICH08
»gxggéégkgggx&gxﬂﬁ
w
‘

o1 M3100 3TN
JOQ (XYW b/t GL (W) /1 3D L VRIS STONAUR XTUNYS SO 0

WAOT THOUMY U0 TT-$9 IOV TNYIRIOASS T8 Oi ININGO LTV

FVE UVIROY § SIVD T 36l 8
(2 3du) VLIS SIONNUO PNV G SV XAV b

Bv9 UVISOV B SIYD T 34t 8
(2 3di2) VANS SHONMUR WMV € SYRIY SNV &

DNMCTIGS B SO ISENGT TS INGAVS SN0 T

SHAN MK
S0 NDUVODT LOVICY TRIII0 QI STNVANO ALAN Wi TAYNGHOOO Of YOLVHNGD  Z

SGUOGIY ANVMOD AN
O GEVE HYNNONISY GREGSHT 0 01 IV SHMA INISIG 0 SNOUYIEY  t

SILON US

Ad

d.ddv




CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax

- APPLICATION TO WAIVE CURB, GUTTER
AND SIDEWALK INSTALLATION

APPLICANT(s): Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC

MAILING ADDRESS: 16580 Wedge Parkway #300, Reno, NV_89511
PHONE NO. (Home) (Business) (775) 850-3010
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): same

(Property owner consent in writing must be provided.)

MAILING ADDRESS: same

ADDRESS AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
3600 West idaho Street

ASSESSOR PARCEL NO(S):__001-679-011 Parcel 1, File 736178

IR R

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application
form must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least two weeks before

any City Council meeting.

Fee: A $250.00 non-refundable filing fee.

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing
condition drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building
setbacks, distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other
pertinent information.

Note: One .pdf (email is okay) of the entire application must be submitted, as well as one set
of legible, reproducible plans 8 2" x 11" in size.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support the request.

RECEIVED

Revised 172418 Page 1




1. APPLICANT requests a waiver of the requirement to install curb, gutter and sidewaik as described

below:
Waiver of the curb and gutter on the West Idaho Street frontage for Assessor’s Parcel

Number 001-679-011 (Parcel 1, File 736178)

2. ldentify any special circumstances, features or conditions applying to the property or the
surrounding area which warrant or justify the waiver (evidence that it is technically impractical to
install curb, guiter and sidewalk because of circumstances beyond the reasonabie control of the
applicant):

The Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT), which controls the West Idaho

Street reight-of-way at this location, has reviewed the need for curb & gutter at this location
and has determined that it is not needed to control drainage in this area. See the attached
letter and email from Boyd Ratliff, NDOT District Engineer, regarding this matter.

3. Indicate how the granting of the waiver will not result in prejudice to other properties in the vicinity
nor be detrimental to the public health, safety, and general welfare.

No other properties in the area are served with curb and gutter.

This area intentionally left blank,

RS

D Y e S A e

Revised 1124118 o ”' "~ Page2




By My Signature below:

Xl 1consentto having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

Ol object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

XI I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department or the City Council, nor does it in and of itself guarantee issuance
of any other required permits and/or licenses.

DX | acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

X I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant / Agent: L L\(\«m C;gw & D@ f(o\,;;crr\ QK Neofe _ Ll
(Please print or type)
Mailing Address: (-98C  Wedey TR, ¥ 3c0
Street Addres5 or P.O. Box
Penc  INV 95/
City, State, Zip Code
Phone Number: 75 85¢ 30 O
Email address: Nk (G @ ity 2GR . oM

IvZi

SIGNATURE: ///) - éé’é/;/\

OFFICE USE ONLY

File No: |- 1D Date Filed: ) [1A[I1f) Fee Paid:ﬂQQI ) (:Lizt 1’5309

Revised 12418 | - Page 3



STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

RUDY MALFABON, P.E., Director

SR overmer RECEIVED

fn Reply Refer to:

1 nD
[ RN

SR 535

City of Elko

1751 College Ave

Elko, NV 89801

Attn: Jeremy Draper, P.E.
Development Manager

Dear Mr, Draper:

Regarding the proposed Golden Gate gas station, NDOT does not require closed
drainage, pedestrian, or bicycle facilities at this time. Currently there are no existing
adjacent closed drainage, pedestrian or bike facilities to connect to.

Should you need more information on this matter please contact me at this office.

Sincerely,

T /
: foyd, _Ratligr
Assistant District Engineer

District Il

cc:File



Jeremy Draper

- I
From: Jeremy Draper
Sent: Tuesday, June 06, 2017 9:48 AM
To: ‘Ratliff, Boyd A’ RECEIVED
Subject: RE: Exit 298, e e ey
HEE R R R R
Thank you,

Jeremy Draper, PE
Dcvelopment Manager
775-777-7217

PCORPOR,

>
197 e

?

From: Ratliff, Boyd A [mailto:BRatliff@dot.nv.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, June 06, 2017 9:43 AM

To: Jeremy Draper <jdraper@elkocitynv.gov>; Morfin, Rhonda M <RMorfin@dot.nv.gov>

Cc: Tom Ballew (tcballew@frontiernet.net) <tcballew@frontiernet.net>; Ryan Limberg <rlimberg@elkocitynv.gov>; Bob
Thibauit <bthibault@elkocitynv.gov>

Subject: RE: Exit 298,

Jeremy,

Yes. To clarify, the Department (NDOT) does support the City of Elko regarding the construction of any improvements
required in any development. The Department will continue to coordinate any such improvements that are submitted
to be under permit within NDOT Right-of-Ways as they occur.

To clarify, the letter you received regarding the Colden Gate Development, NDOT does require the same improvements
as the City of Elko when they are adjacent to existing ones as part of our Access Management. As such, a condition of
the Permit for Access to Golden Gate will include the construction of these improvements if they are ever constructed
adjacent to them.

Currently, we understand that a pedestrian path would be required in this area, and we do support the City in this
regard.

Bovd Rathff
Assistant District Eng.
1951 Idaho Street
Elko, NV 89801

(775) 777-2712



From: Jeremy Draper [/ codrapar (@0 Coe o]
Sent: Tuesday, June 06, 2017 9:14 AM
To: Ratliff, Boyd A < 5.>; Morfin, Rhonda M <~
Cc: Tom Ballew (= ar)<iznrocv Bitontieroeio
Thibault <zthib

Subject: Exit 298,

:t>; Ryan le l;erg <ind

oy .80V BOb

Thank you for meeting with us yesterday to discuss the proposed Golden Gate Development. | know that Bob and Ryan
are working on the permit for our proposed utility extensions through the area. In reading your letter again Boyd in
regards to the pedestrian access you state that NDOT does not require it at this time, | just want to verify that you have
no concerns and would support the City requiring pedestrian access along properties as they develop.

Thank you,

Jeremy Draper, PE
Development Manager
City of Elko

1751 College Ave

Elko, NV 89801
Phone:775-777-7217
Fax: 775-777-7219




Agenda Item VI.B.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and
Wine License and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua
Hunt and Joseph Hunt, dba Hunt Convenience Stores, LLC, located at 275 12t
Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: February 27,2018

Agenda Category: PETITION
Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information:

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required:
Budget amount available:
Fund name:
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information:
Recommended Motion: Ratify a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and Wine License
and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua Hunt and Joseph
Hunt, dba Hunt Convenience Stores, LLC, located at 275 12th Street, Elko, NV
89801.
Prepared By: Ben Reed, Police Chief
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:
Council Agenda Distribution: Joshua Hunt
759 Grandview Drive
Folsom, CA 95630
Joseph Hunt

5011 Jardin Lane
Carmichael, CA 95608

Created on 02/21/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1



Agenda Item VI.C.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and
Wine License and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua
Hunt and Joseph Hunt, dba Idaho Street Station, LLC, located at 1600 Idaho Street,
Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27, 2018

Agenda Category: PETITION
Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information:

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required:
Budget amount available:
Fund name:
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information:
Recommended Motion: Ratify a 30-day temporary Packaged Beer and Wine License
and issuing a regular Packaged Beer and Wine License to Joshua Hunt and Joseph
Hunt, dba Idaho Street Station, LL.C, located at 1600 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801.
Prepared By: Ben Reed, Police Chief
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:
Council Agenda Distribution: Joshua Hunt
759 Grandview Drive
Folsom, CA 95630
Joseph Hunt

5011 Jardin Lane
Carmichael, CA 95608

Created on 02/21/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1



Agenda Item VILA.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Hearing to determine cause whether or not to suspend or revoke the brothel
license of Soon Yee Scott and Kim Watson, a partnership, d/b/a Mona’s Ranch
(“Mona’s Ranch”), based upon alleged employee misconduct, together with acts or
omissions of Mona’s Ranch in suffering, allowing or permitting the alleged
employee misconduct, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: February 27, 2018

Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING

Time Required: 30 — 45 Minutes

Background Information: On or about February 3, 2018, Mona’s Ranch
bartender/manager Peter Alberro was arrested and the subject of subsequent
seizures of controlled substances/paraphernalia on or about Mona’s Ranch
premises. Specifically, Mr. Alberro, who resided from time to time on the premises
of Mona’s Ranch, was arrested for trafficking under NRS 453.385, Unlawful
Possession for Sale NRS 453.336, and Misdemeanor Drug Paraphernalia NRS
453.336 and Mona’s Ranch is potentially accountable for relevant related activities
on or about the premises, or in conjunction therewith, of Mona’s Ranch, 103 S. 3¢
Street, Elko, Nevada which constitute a cause or causes for suspension and/or

revocation of its brothel license under Title 4 Chapter 9 of the Elko City Code. CC

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Memorandum; Exhibits 1 - 6
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council.
Prepared by: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review: David Stanton, City Attorney

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Soon Yee Scott and Kim Watson

Mona’s Ranch Scott/Watson
103 S. 379, Street 3188 Azure Bay Street
Elko, NV 89801 Las Vegas, NV 89117

Created on 02/22/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



MEMORANDUM FOR Council Packet for City Council Meeting on February 27, 2018, Agenda
Item VII(A)

SUBJECT: Mona’s Ranch brothel license hearing

I am familiar with the facts and circumstances regarding the above-referenced agenda
item. The matter will involve the following assertions based on information and belief and
supporting evidence:

A. At all relevant times, Peter Alberro was employed at Mona’s Ranch as a bartender/manager.
He has since had his work permit revoked. A copy of his work permit is attached hereto
together with the letter from the Chief of Police revoking said permit, as Exhibit “1.”

B. Mona’s Ranch is a licensed brothel within the City of Elko. A copy of the brothel license is
attached as Exhibit “2.”

C. Mona’s Ranch is owned by Soon Yee Scott and Kim Watson, a partnership, doing business
as Mona’s Ranch. The named owners reside outside the City of Elko. A copy of the Nevada
Secretary of State’s website print-out containing information about the partnership is
attached as Exhibit “3.” Also attached as Exhibit “4” is a copy of the fictitious name filing
for the partnership on file with the Elko County Clerk’s office.

D. On or about February 3, 2018, during a traffic stop of Peter Alberro for failing to stop at a
stop sign, drugs and paraphernalia were discovered in Peter Alberro’s automobile and a
methamphetamine (“meth”) pipe was found on his person. Ultimately, Peter Alberro was
arrested for Trafficking under NRS 453.385, Unlawful Possession for Sale under NRS
453.337, Possession of a Controlled Substance under NRS 453.336, and Misdemeanor Drug
Paraphernalia NRS 453.336. A summary of the list of the items found in the automobile
search is as follows: $800.00 cash, a personal safe, a weight set, a digital scale, seven (7)
separate bags of meth, a gallon bag with trace amounts of meth, a meth pipe, a tin with trace
amounts of meth, and a blue digital scale.

E. In furtherance of that arrest, a search warrant was issued for a residence owned by Peter
Alberro at 420 Oak Street, in Elko Nevada, and a personal room at Mona’s Brothel under the
control of Peter Alberro, located at 103 S. 3rd Street, in Elko, Nevada.

F. In execution of the warrant at Mona’s Brothel, fourteen (14) grams of meth were found, as
well as drug paraphernalia. It will be shown that this weight of meth is substantial in the view
of law enforcement and would not ordinarily be for personal use. The following items were
seized therefrom: a counterfeit $100 bill, a digital scale, a pill pouch with meth residue, four
(4) bags of meth, 3 meth pipes. ,

G. At the 420 Oak Street address five (5) grams of meth and drug paraphernalia were found.

It is believed that the factual allegations and evidence listed above constitutes grounds for
suspension and/or revocation of the brothel license held by Mona’s Ranch under 4-9-16 of the
Elko City Code, as set forth in the Notice of Hearing to determine cause, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit “5.” A copy of part of the Elko City Code regulating prostitution is
attached as Exhibit “6.”

The operation of a brothel within the City of Elko is done pursuant to a privilege license.
The City has set forth strict standards concerning the operation of a house of prostitution to



protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. Upon information and belief, the above-
listed factual allegations and evidence will show that the licensee has violated Title 4, Chapter 9,
and has fallen below the standards required of a brothel licensee within the City. It appears there
is substantial negligence and lack of supervision which has led to the endangerment of the health,
safety and welfare of the public, and Council action is sought to impose discipline in the form it
determines to be warranted.

For the Council’s information, Peter Alberro and Soon Yee Scott were served with notice
of this hearing no later than February 17, 2018, and that at the time of this memo, the City has
not been contacted by any representative from Mona’s Ranch.

fon .

Ben Reed, Jr.

Police Chief

Elko Police Department
City of Elko, Nevada



EXHIBIT 1

EXHIBIT 1



I 3 e

<,



" 420 Oak Street

Ben Reed, Jr.
ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT Police Chisf ~ *7

1448 Silver Street
Efko Nevada 89801
775.777.7310
775.738.1415 Fax

epd@elkocitynv.gov

February 7, 2018 T

peter ). Alberro

Elko, NV 89801

Subject: Revocation of work permit.
ir. Alberro,

This letter is to inform you that the work permit you applied for and received on September 29, 2015 is
revoked per Elko City Code 5-11-4 (E). Therefore, you may no longer work in Mona s or any other liquor

establishment in the City of Elko.

The reason for the revocation comes from your recent arrest by the Elko Police Department on February
3,2018.

You must surrender your current work permit at the Elko Police Department, 1448 Silver Street by 5:00
pm Monday, February 26, 2018.

If you wish to appeal this decision you must do so as set forth in Elko City Code 5-11-5.
Sincerely,

AN

Ben Reed, Jr.
Police Chief

Attachments: Elko City Code 5-11-1; 5-11-2; 5-11-5




EXHIBIT 2

EXHIBIT 2



MONA'S RANCH
103 $3RD ST
41004
i/i/2018
Brothel

City of Eiko
Brothel License

Class: BROTHEL
Expirstion Dete:  06/30/2018

SCOTT/WATSON
103S3RDST




EXHIBIT 3

EXHIBIT 3



Entity Details - Secretary of State, Nevada htip://nvsos.gov/sosentitysearch/PrintCorp.aspx?Ix8nvq=EVAQPQ2...

SOON YEE SCOTT & KIM WATSON

Non-Title 7 Business Entity Information

Status: | Active File Date: | 10/31/2014
Type: | Partnership Exemption Code: )
NV Business ID: | NV20141678600 Business License Exp: | 10/31/2018

Registered Agent Information
No Registered Agent required for Non-Title 7 Business Licenses.

Associated Business Names
MONA'S RANCH
MONA'S RANCH
MONA'S RANCH

1of 1 2/21/2018, 8:03 AM




EXHIBIT 4

EXHIBIT 4



FILED

W 4t . 0cT I3 PH 36

ELKO COUNTY ELKO CO DISTRICT COURT
CERTIFICATE OF BUSINESS: FICTITIOUS FIRM NAME YO
‘THIS CERTIFICATE EXPIRES 5 YEARS FROM FILE DATES ;o Dgpuw_ﬁ_

K NewFiing DO Renewal

THE UNDERSIGNED dofes) hereby certify that LAM_@_LL@_ s
{circle
ol 700 larsnin PIOOTIED » Narsnio Saeneral Ma RIS J qu.'c

(type of business)
businessat /03 S. 2Ly ST, ftiko | (035 200 ST Ecno pv §S 01/
{physicel address) {maling addregs)
under the fictiious firm name of___/M O v A s lz"\*’bd

{name of businass)
with @ telephone number of_77S - 772 - 7Y¢ S and that ssid firm is composed of the following
persons whose name(s), address(es), and phone humbers or legal enlity on file with the Navada
Secretary of State with the signing officer's name and title, are as follows, to-wit:

NameMégﬂ"T ' Name_Kim (g A-TSons
Address 318§ A 2uNE KAy ST, Address_2 LEF AZwRC gAv ST
CitylState__LAS UEEAS v/ E5107 ChyiState_ LAS VEcAS MJ €617
Phone No,_702 - St 2 ~3eus$ PhoneNo._7¢2 - 8SF- 2529
ESTABLISHED SINCE .3//7 INELKO COUNTY SINCE_/2 =07 /7

WiTNESS ry hand this __ 3 dayot _ Der 2047 .

o -
{ {ure ara; or authorizad

)

Onthis 05 _O5 dayot Oc e Zd") before me, W\Lp \
2 Notary Public in and for uaid nlyand in, duly co sworn, personally” . -
appasared and known lo me (o ba the parson(s)
whose name(s) s d o the wmn instrument, and ndmowladgod to me that they executed the same frealy snd
volunigrlly and for the yses and purpases therein mantioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF i have hereunto set my hand and affixed my officiel stamp at my office in
the County of Elfko the dangnd yesrin ¢ lsebrtmcate llrslabove written.

KPRESSLER % !Q
. %mtm
APp. Explres :

it submitted by mall, please send thcodglml WO COpIoR, T Possed, stamped envelope and the $20.00 filin fee to!
Etko County Clerk, 550 Court SM J" Floor. Eiko, Nevada 89801

HONVY SSYNOW

/107/7€1/0T A



EXHIBIT 5

EXHIBIT 5



NOTICE OF HEARING TQ DETERMINE CAUSE

TO: Soon Yee Scott, Kim Anita Watson, Partnership, d/b/a Mona’s Ranch (hereafter “Mona’s
Ranch” or “Llcensee”

SERVICE: Posting At Business Premises 103 S. 3™ St. Elko, Nevada

Mona’s Ranch is hereby given Notice that the City of Elko will hold a hearing to
determine whether or not to suspend and/or revoke the brothel license held by you or your
partnership pursuant to 4-9-16 of the Elko City Code, on one or more of the following possible

grounds:

1. Violation by the licensee of Title 4, Chapter 9, Subsection 8(A) of the Elko City
Code (operation conducted in violation of any applicable cxty, court, state or
federal ordinance, statute or regulation);

2, Violation by any person who works on a regularly or weekly basis in Mona's
Ranch of any provision where the licensee knew or should have known of the
violation;

3. Licensee knowingly permitting the existence of a health hazard on the prexmses
occupied by the licensed operation; and/or

4. Any other cause which the City Council may determine to be hermful or injurious
to the health, welfare, and safety of the general public.

The following event(s) and associated conduct may provide grounds for the suspension
and/or revocation of your brothel license:

Arrest of Licensee’s bartender/manager, Peter Alberro, who at relevant times
resided on the premises of Mona’s Ranch, and subsequent seizure of controlled
substances/paraphernalia on or about Mona’s Ranch premises on or about
February 3, 2018, for trafficking under NRS 453.385, Unlawful Possession for
Sale NRS 453.336, Misdemeanor Drug Paraphernaha NRS 453,336 and any
relevant related activities on or about the premises, or in conjunction with the

* premises, of Mona’s Ranch, 103 8. 3™ Street, Elko, Nevada.

The hearing on this matter will be held at the City Council at its meeting on February 27,
2018, at 5:30 p.m., at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada. You are permitted to
be present, to be represented by legal counsel, and to submit evidence and testimony regarding
the matters set forth above.

11




DATED this 28ay of February 2018,

By: 2 MM\/\__

CURTIS CALDER
City of Elko City Manager



business premises of Mona’s Ranch at 103 S. 37 St., Elko, Nevada, pursuant to 4-9-16 B1 of the
Elko City Code.

Pursuant to NRS 53.045: “I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of
Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.”

Executed on 2/ 2 ,2018.

e

Sigpatire

ﬁwn T/laum
Print Name

PROOF OF SERVICE
On February 2l , 2018, I served the following document:
DETERMINE CAUSE at the following time: _(Z. : by posting a copy to the




EXHIBIT 6

EXHIBIT 6



2/21/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

Chapter 9
PROSTITUTION 11

4-9-1: PRIVILEGE LICENSE:

No applicant for a license or other affirmative city council approval has any right to a license or the
granting of the approval sought. Any license issued or other city council approval granted pursuant to
the provisions of this chapter is a revocable privilege and no holder acquires any vested right therein
or thereunder. (Ord. 354, 8-14-1984)

4-8-2: PROSTITUTION NOT AN OFFENSE OR NUISANCE:

The operation of a house of prostitution within the city in accordance with the provisions of this chapter
does not constitute a public nuisance or an offense to public decency. (Ord. 354, 8-14-1984)

4-9-3: UNLAWFUL UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS:

A. It is unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to keep, own or operate any house of prostitution,
house of ill fame or bawdy house of any description within the city, except as herein provided in
-this chapter.

B. It is unlawful for any owner or bartender/manager of a licensed brothel to allow any person to
practice prostitution or to solicit business for a prostitute or to procure any person for the purpose
of prostitution within the city, except within the premises of a licensed brothel and within the
boundaries of the restricted commercial district as set forth in the city zoning code. There will be no
"out dates". That is, prostitutes shall not be hired from a brothel for the purpose of prostitution to
accompany a customer outside the brathel from which the prostitute is employed. All soliciting of
prostitution and acts of prostitution must take place inside the premises of a licensed brothel.

C. In the trial of any case arising under the provisions of subsection A or B of this section, evidence of
general reputation shall be competent evidence as to the question of the ill fame of any house of
prostitution and to the question of the ill fame of any person alleged to be practicing prostitution.
(Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-4: DEFINITIONS:

http:/Awvww.sterlingcodiflers.com/codebook/index.php?book_d=316 115



2/2112018 Sterilng Codifiers, Inc.

As used in this chapter, the following words will be defined as follows:

APPLICANT: Any person, firm or corporation applying to the city council for a license under the
provision of this chapter, together with all persons listed in subsections 4-9-6A and B of this chapter.

BOARD: The city council of the city of Elko.

BROTHEL: A duly licensed house of prostitution operated in accordance with the provisions of this
chapter.

CITY CLERK: The city clerk of the city of Elko.
HOUSE OF PROSTITUTION: Any building in which sexual acts are provided or performed for a fee.
POLICE: The chief of police of the city of Elko.
WORK CARD OR WORK PERMIT: A permit issued by the chief of police to applicants who meet the

requirements of this chapter permitting the applicant to perform work authorized by this chapter. (Ord.
443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-5: LICENSING AND CONTROL BOARD CREATED:

A. City Council Designated: The city council shall act as a prostitution licensing and control board.

B. Duty: It shall be the duty of the city council to carry out terms of provisions of this chapter, and to
see that this chapter is faithfully enforced.

C. Powers: Powers of the city council shall include, but shall not be limited to, the power to:
1. Receive all license applications submitted under the provisions of this chapter;
2. Investigate all applicants for a license under the provisions of this chapter;
3. Grant or refuse to grant the license provided for in this chapter;
4. Receive complaints concerning alleged violations of this chapter;

5. Revoke or temporarily suspend or put restrictions and conditions against licenses issued under
the terms of this chapter;

6. Exercise any proper power and authority necessary to perform the duties assigned it, and is not
limited by any enumeration of powers or considerations in this chapter; and

7. Hear appeals from the rules of the chief of police. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

http:/Aww.sterlingeodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=316 2115



2/21/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

4-9-6: LICENSE APPLICATION, CONTENTS:

Any person, firm or corporation desiring to own or operate a house of prostitution within the city shall
apply to the city council for a license to operate such house of prostitution. Such license application
shall contain the following information:

A. Names, ages and addresses of all persons who have or will have any financial interest in the
operation, including the owner of the real property, if the real property is leased to the operator;

B. Names, ages and addresses of persons who are or will be personally responsible for the conduct
and management of the operation;

C. A recent photograph and complete set of fingerprints of all persons listed In subsections A and B of
this section;

D. Names and addresses of every other business in which the applicant has any financial interest,
including the type of such business and the nature of the applicant's interest;

E. Names and addresses of all employers of the applicant in the preceding five (5) years;

F. All the applicant's addresses for the preceding five (5) years;

G. Alist of all prior convictions of the applicant for any crime, excludingr minor traffic violations, which
list shall include a statement of the offense, the place of its occurrence, the date of its occurrence,
and the disposition of the case;

H. A complete and accurate financial statement of the applicant, together with an audit of the
applicant's finances conducted by a licensed certified public accountant;

I. The street address of the property upon which the proposed operation is to be conducted, together
with copies of all deeds, mortgages, deeds of trusts, liens or other encumbrances, leasehold
interests, or other interests relating to the property;

J. Any other information reasonably deemed necessary or useful by the city council;

hitp://www.sterlingeodifiers.com/codebook/index.php7book_|d=316 3/15




2/21/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

K. Names, ages and addresses of all persons who have or will have leasehold interests in the
property. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-7: LICENSE APPLICATION, FILING AND INVESTIGATION:

A. Filing; Investigation Fee: All license applications under the provisions of this chapter shall be filed
with the city clerk, along with a nonrefundable two thousand five hundred dollar {$2,500.00)
investigation fee. If the actual total cost of investigating any license application exceeds two

thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) the applicant shall be responsible for and pay the city
the amount in excess of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00).

B. Investigation: Upon presentation of any license application to the city clerk, the city clerk shall refer
such application to the chief of police for investigation. The chief of police shall conduct a fuli

investigation of all information contained in the license application, which investigation shall
include, but shall not be limited to, the following:

1. A complete check of all records of the federal bureau of investigation and any other similar
organization concerning the criminal record of any applicant;

2. A personal interview with each applicant;

3. An interview, either personal or by mail, with all employers of the applicant and business
associates of the applicant, as shown in the license application;

4. Examination of the financial statement and financial background of the applicant;

5. Any other investigation reasonably deemed necessary by the chief of police.

C. Report Of Investigation Results: Within thirty (30) days after any application is referred by the city
clerk to the chief of police, the chief of palice shall report the results of his investigation in writing to
the city council, which report shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:

1. A complete statement of the results of all investigations undertaken;
2. A list of any errors or omissions found to exist in the application;

3. An evaluation of the personal and financial status and background of the applicant.

D. Board Action: Within thirty (30) days after receiving the chief of police's report, the board may:
1. Refer the application back to the chief of police for additional investigation;

2. Require a personal interview with the applicant;

hitp://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=318 415




2/21/2018 Sterling Codifiers, [nc.
3. Require the applicant to submit additional information relative to his application;

4. Grant or refuse to grant a license under the provisions of this chapter.

E. Refusal: The city council may refuse to grant a license to any applicant:

1. Where an applicant or an applicant's spouse or any other individual listed on the application that

would have any interest in the brothel, has been convicted of any felony;
2. Who is financially insolvent or is inadequately financed;
3. Who has a history of financial instability;
4. Who has wilfully omitted or incorrectly stated any material fact in the license application;

5. Who has any financial interest in, or connection with, any business which is illegal where such
business is located;

6. Whose license under the provisions of this chapter would be contrary to the health, welfare or
safety of the city or its residents;

7. When the proposed establishment is not in the correct zoning;

8. Who has business relationships with persons or entities who would be denied a license for
reasons other than financial instability or insolvency.

F. Resubmittal; Time Limit: Upon denying any application for a license under the provisions of this
chapter, the applicant shall have thirty (30) days within which to cure any defect in the application,
and such application may be again submitted to the city council for consideration, as herein
provided, within thirty (30) days after such denial. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-8: LICENSE RESTRICTIONS:

Every license issued under the provisions of this chapter shall have the following restrictions:

A. Violations Not Permitted: No operation may be conducted in violation of any applicable city, county,

state or federal ordinance, statute or regulation.

B. Maximum Number Permitted: The maximum number of houses of prostitution which will be
permitted within the city limits is five (5). (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

hitp:/iwww.sterlingcodiflers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=316

5/16




2212018 Sterling Codiffers, Inc.

4-9-9: CITY COUNCIL MAY IMPOSE OTHER RESTRICTIONS:

The city council may, in its discretion and to promote the health, safety and welfare of the people of
the city, and to promote the orderly conduct of the operation, impose additional restrictions, including,
but not limited to, the following:

A. Limitation of the number of prostitutes that may be working in an operation;

B. Limitation on the type, signing and size of building in which an operation may be conducted;

C. The city council may impose restrictions pursuant to this section prior, during or after issuance of
license;

D. The city council may by resolution authorize the chief of police to promulgate written rules and
regulations not inconsistent with the provisions of this chapter regulating the activities and conduct
of prostitutes and the brothel employees working pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. All
such proposed rules and regulations will be forwarded to the city council and affected licensees
prior to implementation. The city council will hear any written objections at its next meeting and
approve, modify or reject the proposed rules. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-10: ZONING:

No licenses shall be issued without the prospective licensee first obtaining proper zoning for the
proposed operation. (Ord. 354, 8-14-1984)

4-9-11: LICENSE ISSUANCE:

A. Content Of License: Upon approval of all applications connected with an operation, the city council
shall issue a license for the operation, which license shall state:

1. The name and address or location of the operation;

2. Any option restrictions or limitations Imposed by the city council under section 4-9-9 of this
chapter;

3. The date of issuance of the license;

4. The date of expiration of the license.

http:/iwww.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebookfindex.php?book_id=316 6/15




2/21/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

B. Term Of License: All licenses shall be issued for an annual period from January 1 to January 1 of
the next year.

C. Renewal: No later than thirty (30) days before the expiration date of any license, the licensee shall
apply to the city clerk, on forms provided, for a renewal. The city clerk shall forthwith notify the
chief of police, and if any written complaint regarding the operation shall have been received
during that current license period, the chief of police may cause the renewal application to be
placed on the agenda of the next city council meeting, at which-meeting the city council shall either
renew or deny the license. If placed on the agenda, the city council shall conduct a hearing, and
may summon witnesses, interview the licensee, interview any complainant, require additional
investigation by the chief of police, or do any and all other acts which may be necessary or
appropriate to the council's determination. If no such complaints have been received, the city clerk
shall issue the renewed license upon compliance with the provisions of this chapter.

D. Failure To Renew: Failure of any licensee to apply for a renewal, as required in subsection C of this
section, shall be grounds for the city council to revoke the license at its first regular meeting in
January. Any license thus revoked may be reinstated only upon compliance by the licenses with all
requirements of this chapter relating to original license applications.

E. Changes In Ownership: No change in ownership, partners, shareholders or any other persons with
any ownership interest in a brothel shall occur after the city council has granted a license until the
following occurs:

1. The licensee shall furnish to the chief of police a list of all proposed persons or entities who
desire to acquire an interest in the brothel.

2. The chief of police may, in his sole discretion after reviewing the list, request a nonrefundable
investigation fee in the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) per person or entity
desiring to acquire an interest in the brothel.

3. All provisions of this chapter relating to the investigation and licensing of applicants for a brothel
license shall apply to the person or entity desiring to acquire an interest in the brothel. Such
person or entity shall be granted or refused the privilege to acquire an ownership interest in the
brothel in accordance with all applicable provisions of this chapter for the granting or denying of
a license to the original licensee or owners. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-12: LICENSE FEES:

A. Required: Every licensee shall pay two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) per year, for the
privilege of operating a house of prostitution in the city effective September 15, 1984. Said fees,
except the fee paid on September 15, 1984, shall be paid annually or semiannually and shall
accompany the annual renewal application form, which shall be due on or before December 15 of
each year. The license fee may be increased from time to time by resolution of the city council. The

tittp:/fwww.sterlingcodifiers.com/codeboakiindex.php7book_id=316 715



2/21/2018 Stering Codifiers, Inc.

license fee for any licenses granted for a portion of a calendar year before June 30 of any year,
shall be two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00). The license fes for any licenses granted for
a portion of a calendar year after June 30 of any year shall be one thousand two hundred fifty
dollars ($1,250.00).

B. Due; Renewal: License fees shall be paid to the city clerk beginning September 15, 1984.
Thereafter, the annual or semiannual fee shall accompany the renewal application on or before
December 15 of each year. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-13: WORK PERMIT REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS:

A. Permit Required: It is unlawful for any person to work as a prostitute or bartender/manager at a
brothel or any employee to reside on the premises of a licensed brothel, unless such person is the
holder of a valid current work permit issued by the chief of police or his designee in accordance
with this chapter.

B. Registration: Every prostitute and bartender/manager and employee residing on the premises of a
licensed brothel shall be registered with the chief of police on forms provided by the chief of police
which shall be referred to as a "work card" and which shall include:

1. The name, age, address, physical description and current pictured identification of the applicant
is required. Forms of identification acceptable are those issued from state agencies which
require a certified copy of a birth certificate. Also at the time of registering, each applicant must
produce along with pictured identification their social security card;

2. A full set of fingerprints of the applicant;
3. Complete employment record of the applicant for the preceding five (5) years;
4, All addresses of the applicant for the preceding five (5) years;

5. Complete criminal record of the applicant, including all convictions, except minor traffic
violations, which list shall include a statement of each offense, the place of its occurrence and
the date of its occurrence;

6. Prostitute work card application be accompanied with an application fee as set by resolution by
the city council, or an annua! renewal or revision fee as set by resolution by the city council;

7. Work card application for bartender/manager and any employee residing on the premises of a
licensed brothel be accompanied with an application fee equal in amount to the fee to obtain a
bar employee work permit under title 5, chapter 11 of this code;

8. The work card for the applicant shall be renewed annually;

9. A work card must be renewed each time a prostitute changes places of work from one brothel
and starts work with a different brothel.

http:/fwww.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?bock_kd=316 8115



212112018 Sterling Codiflers, Inc.

C. Investigation: The chief of police shall investigate, through all available means, the accuracy of all
information supplied by any applicant on the registration form.

D. Prohibited Employees: No person may work as a prostitute or bartender/manager or employee who
resides on the premises of a licensed brothel who:

1. Has been convicted of the possession, use, sale or furnishing of any narcotic, hallucinogenic or
dangerous drug within the past five (5) years;

2. Is on probation resulting from a conviction of a felony;

3. Has been convicted of any crime involving theft, embezzlement or misappropriation of funds
within the past five (5) years;

4. Has been convicted of any crime involving violence or the use of any deadly or dangerous
weapon within the past five (5) years;

5. Has been convicted of any crime involving the illegal use of firearms within the past five (5)
years,

6. Has wilfully made any false statement or omission in the registration form required by
subsection B of this section;

_7.Is a person under twenty one (21) years of age.

E. Denial Or Revocation Authority: The chief of police or his designee will have the authority to deny
or revoke the work permit of a prostitute or of a bartender/manager or an employee who resides on
the premises of a licensed brothel who does not qualify under this section or who is found to be
violating this code or state law, The person whose work card has been denied or revoked may file

an appeal to the city council within thirty (30} calendar days from the date in which the work permit
{card) was denied or revoked.

F. Card Requirements; Restrictions:

1. Ali prostitutes or bartender/managers or any employee who resides on the premises of a
licensed brothel shall file and maintain a current work card with the operator of a licensed brothel
before commencing work as a prostitute or bartender/manager or employee who resides on the
premises of a licensed brothel; no work card shall be transferable; all work cards shall state the
name of the licensed operation where the prostitute or bartender/manager or employee who
resides on the premises of a licensed brothel will work; no prostitutes shall change their place of
work from one brothel to another without first notifying the chief of police of the proposed change
and obtaining a revised work card.

2. No prostitute or bartender/manager of a licensed brothel can possess more than one work card
at a time or work for more than one brothel at a time.

G. Security Requirements/Inspections For Brothels:
hitp://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php ?book_id=316 915



2/21/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

1. Owner/management of brothels shall have the choice of operating their business with the
business entrance to the brothel sither locked or unlocked. If the brothel elects to keep the
business entrance and exit doors unlocked, they must be unlocked at all times during posted
business hours and the business hours must be posted on the entrance door. Upon complying
with these conditions, the brothel need not provide keys to the chief of police, If the brothei
elects to keep the business entrance and exit doors locked during business hours,
owner/management of brothels shall provide the chief of police keys to all entrance and exit
doors of the brothel. If door locks are changed, then current keys must be provided to the chief
of police.

2. a. The brothel license which is granted as a revocable privilege pursuant to section 4-9-1 of this
chapter shall include a consent to and an acknowledgment of the power and authority of the
chief of police, or other authorized representative of the city to enter the licensed brothel
premises and the principal office of any brothel, at any time during brothel business hours for the
purpose of examining the premises, or the books of account of said business, to ascertain the
truth or veracity of statements made on the brothel license application and to determine if the
terms, conditions, provisions and regulations of this code and state law are being complied with.

b. The person in charge of a licensed house of prostitution shall cooperate with the state health
division, bureau of disease control during:

(1) The investigation of the circumstances or cause of a case or suspected case, or of an
outbreak or suspected outbreak;

(2) The carrying out of measures for the prevention, suppression or control of a communicable
disease, including procedures of exclusion, isolation and quarantine; and

3. A person who owns/operates a brothel business or his/her agent or employee commits an
offense if such person refuses to permit a lawful inspection of the premises by the persons
designated above. (Ord. 559, 1-23-2001)

4-9-14: MEDICAL EXAMINATION REQUIRED OF ALL PROSTITUTES:

A. Examination Requirements: Every licensee shali require and ensure that the rules and regulations
now in force or hereafter promulgated by the division of health of the department of human
resources of the state are complied with and that medical examinations are undergone by all
prostitutes working at the licensee's operation, which examinations shall:

1. Be performed at least once a week. These medical examinations must be completed and the
examination results available by each Friday of the week prior to medical exam record checks
being conducted by the police department;

2. Be performed by or under the supervision of a physician or doctor of osteopathy duly licensed to
practice medicine in the state;

3. Include all tests specified by the division of health of the state department of human resources
for the detection and diagnosis of sexually transmitted diseases including, but not limited to,
weekly tests for gonorrthea and chlamydia; and a monthly blood test for syphilis and human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV), which shall be processed at a licensed and approved clinical
laboratory;

http:/Avww.sterlingcadifiers.com/codebock/index_php?book_id=316 10/15



2/2112018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

4. Include monthly tests approved by the division of health of the department of human resources
of the state for the detection of HIV. Appropriate specimens are to be submitted to and
processed at a licensed and approved medical laboratory;

5. Include other medically approved tests, deemed advisable by the physician, for determining
whether the prostitute is afflicted with any infectious or contagious disease;

6. Be performed at the location of the licensed operation, at the physician's office, at a hospital or
clinic, as determined by the physician;

7. Consistent with NAC 441A.120(2), no person may work as a prostitute in a licensed house of
prostitution until a state licensed and approved medical laboratory has reported that the results
of the tests required by NAC 441A.800 et seq., do not show the presence of chlamydia, syphilis,
gonorrhea or the antibody to the human immunodeficiency virus. In effect, no prostitutes will be
allowed to work (perform sexual acts with another person) on the premises until they have been
cleared by a physician to work;

8. a. All prostitutes who have registered with the police department but are awaiting test results
from a licensed physician may reside at the brothel. It will be the sole responsibility of the
owner/manager to ensure that all prostitutes awaiting resuits and residing at the brothel remain
off the floor, which includes the bar area, and do not engage in any type of sexual activity until
such test results have been received from the physicians;

b. If any prostitute's test results are positive, the prostitute must be puiled off the brothel floor
immediately and her work card turned over to a representative of the police department. The
prostitute must wait at the brothel until contact is made by the state health department or its
designee. This contact may be made in person or by telephone. Once contact is complete, the
prostitute may then leave the premises of the brothel. If the prostitute chooses to stay, she will
remain off the floor, which includes the bar area, and not engage in any type of sexual activity
until a clearance to return to work has been received from the physician and presented to the
police department;

9. The owner/management or employee of the brothel is required to notify the police department
when a prostitute leaves the brothel on vacation. (Any period in excess of 24 hours is considered
vacation.) Prior to returning to work from vacation, the prostitute must get a medical exam,
clearance from a licensed physician and pick up their work card at the police department;

10. All prostitutes shall be tested to determine if they are infected with the hepatitis B virus (HBV)
by a licensed and approved medical laboratory. If antibody testing shows a positive result for
HBV, the prostitute will not be issued a work permit, If the results of the HBV are negative, it will
be the responsibility of the prostitute to follow up with the vaccine series. Prostitutes who are
undergoing the hepatitis B vaccine series shall not be prohibited from working in a licensed
brothel.

B. Physician Duties: After performing the examination required in subsection A of this section, the
examining doctor shall:

1. Issue to every person examined and found not to be afflicted with a sexually transmitted disease
or other contagious or infectious disease a certificate so stating;

2. Refuse to issue such certificate to any person found to be, or suspected of being, afflicted with a
sexually transmitted disease or other contagious or infectious disease;

hitp:/Avww.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=316 11716



2/21/2018 Sterling Codiflers, Inc.

3. Report the results of such examinations weekly to the chief of police;

4. If any prostitute examined is found to be afflicted with a sexually transmitted disease or any

contagious or infectious disease, the doctor shall immediately notify the chief of pohce and the
licensed operator where the prostitute is working of such condition.

C. Certificate Required: No person may work as a prostitute in any operation without a current
certificate, as described in subsection B1 of this section.

D. Denial Based On Positive Result Of Test: No person who has ever been denied a certificate by an
examining physician or doctor of osteopathy, as provided in subsection B2 of this section, may
again work as a prostitute in any licensed operatton until such person has received and presented
to the chief of police a certificate from an examining physician or doctor of osteopathy stating that
the cause or causes which resulted in the denial of the certificate have been cured and that the
person is now free of any sexually transmitted disease or other contagious or infectious disease.

E. Authority Of City Council: Nothing contained in this section shall prevent the city council on its own
motion or upon complaints or reports from any person, from inquiring into the existence of any

condition on the premises of any licensed operation which might constitute or cause a health
hazard. (Ord. 632, 1-11-2005)

4-9-15: GENERAL PROVISIONS:

A. Minors:

1. It is unlawful for any person under the age of twenty one (21) years, except as otherwise

specified in this chapter, to enter or be a patron of any operation licensed under the provisions of
this chapter.

2. It is unlawful for the licensee of any operation licensed under the provisions of this chapter, or for
any prostitute or employee of such licensee, to compel, entice, encourage, permit or suffer any

person under the age of twenty one (21) years, to enter or be a patron of any operation licensed
under the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

B. Advertising: It is unlawful for anyone, not properly licensed by the appropriate licensing authority or
authorities, engaged in the business of prostitution, to advertise prostitution within the city, by use

of print, television or radio media, computers, flyers, CB radio, telephone books or any oth'er form
of advertising. (Ord. 695, 5-13-2008)

C. Work Without Permit: It is unlawful for any licensed brothel under this chapter or for any licensee or
for any employee of any licensee to allow any prostitute or bartender/manager or employee who
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=316 12/15




2/2112018 Sterling Codifiers, inc. .
resides on the premises of a licensed brothel to work in a licensed operation of a brothel without
that person first obtaining a valid work permit from the chief of police. Persons performing part time
maintenance or repair work or delivering supplies are not required to obtain a work permit for such
performance of duties unless they reside on the premises of the licensed brothel. (Ord. 443, 1-24-
1995)

4-9-16: REVOCATION OF LICENSES:

A. Causes: The city council may revoke or temporarily suspend any license issued under the
provisions of this chapter or place a licensee on probation with or without conditions for any of the

following causes:

1. Any cause that would constitute grounds for denial of a license under subsection 4-9-7E of this
chapter;

2. Violation by the licensee of any provision of this chapter,

3. Violation by any prostitute, or other person who works on a regular daily or weekly basis in a
house of prostitution, of any provision of this chapter where the licensee knew or should have

known of the violation;

4. The licensee knowingly permitting the existing of any health hazard on the premises occupied
by the licensed operation or employing any person as a prostitute when such person does not
have a valid health certificate, as required by section 4-9-14 of this chapter;

5. Wilful refusal of the licensee to comply with any order of the city council issued under the
provisions of section 4-9-15 of this chapter;

6. Any other cause which the city council may determine, in its sound discretion, to be harmful or
injurious to the health, welfare and safety of the general public.

B. Action Of City Council: Before action is taken pursuant to subsection A of this section, unless an
alternative procedure is clearly specified elsewhere in this chapter, the city council shali:

1. Conduct a hearing to determine the existence of the cause or causes of action, notice of which
hearing shall have been served upon the licensee or posted upon the premises where the
licensed operation is conducted at least forty eight (48) hours prior to the time of such hearing;

2. Permit the licensee to submit evidence and testimony;
3. Consider all evidence and testimony in support of and in opposition to the action pending;

4. Enter in the minutes of the city council the findings of the city council and reasons for any action
taken by the city council, which action may include revocation or temporary suspension of the
license. The city council may impose such conditions on the operation of the business as are
necessary to cure the problem and eliminate the danger. presented by the violation. Such
conditions may include action by the licensee required to be taken within a reasonable specified
time as an alternative to revocation; and, if necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of
the public from imminent danger, temporary suspension of the license;

hitp:/iwww.sterlingcodiflers.com/codebeok/index php?book_id=316 1315



212172018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.
5. Enter in the minutes of the city council an order specifying the action taken.

C. Notice Of Proceeding: Notice of the proceeding shall be served upon the licensee or posted upon
the premises occupied by the licensed operation.

D. Action Effective: Any action taken shall be effective upon service or posting of the notice, as
specified in subsection C of this section. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-17: EXCEPTION TO HEARING PROCEDURE (EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF
BROTHEL LICENSE):

A brothel license may be suspended without a hearing by a written emergency suspension order
signed by the mayor or one member of the city council and the chief of police, if in their opinion there
exists an immediate and present danger to public health and safety which necessitates the immediate
closure of the brothel. Upon the issuance and service of such an order, all brothel activity shall
immediately cease and the brothel licensee may request a hearing before the city council within three
(3) business days in accordance with the Nevada open meeting law. The proceedings thereafter shall
be held in accordance with section 4-9-16 of this chapter. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-18: LICENSE NOT TRANSFERABLE:

Al licenses granted under this chapter shall be for operations conducted on the property described in
the application only, and no operation shall be added to or moved without a new license application
and approval. (Ord. 354, 8-14-1984) '

4-9-19: DEATH OR RESIGNATION OF LICENSED PERSON:

In the event of the death or resignation of a licensed person without whom a licensed premises would
be forced to cease operations, and in order to prevent undue hardship to an applicant, the city clerk,
with the concurrence of the chief of police, may issue a ninety (90) day "temporary license" pending
the processing of an application for a regular license; provided, however, that at the time any such
temporary license is issued by the city clerk, a full and complete application for a regular brothel
license shall be on file with the city clerk along with a two thousand five hundred dollar ($2,500.00)
nonrefundable investigation fee and referred to the chief of police for a complete investigation of the
new application for a regular brothel license. The chief of police shall submit his investigative findings
along with his recommendation for denial or approval of a regular brothel license to the city council
within thirty (30) days from the date the temporary license was issued. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=316 14/16




2/21/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc.

4-9-20: CRIMINAL PENALTY:

Any person who violates any provision of this chapter or of this code, amended by this chapter, shall
be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not to exceed one
thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or by imprisonment for a term not to exceed six (6) months, or by both
fine and imprisonment. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

4-9-21: SEPARABILITY:

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this chapter is for any reason held
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a
separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions hereof. (Ord. 443, 1-24-1995)

http:/www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebookl/index.php?book_id=316

151156




Agenda Item VIL.B.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 6-18, a
resolution of the Elko City Council, adopting a change in zoning district boundaries
from AG (General Agriculture District) to IC (Industrial Commercial),
approximately 62.03 acres of property located generally northeast of the intersection
of Statice Street, and Delaware Avenue, filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC., and
processed as Rezone No. 10-17, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION
Meeting Date: February 27, 2018
Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING
Time Required: 10 Minutes
Background Information: The Planning Commission considered the Subject Zone
Change Request on February 6, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation
to Council to adopt a resolution, which conditionally approves Rezone No. 10-17. CL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Resolution, P.C. Action Report, Staff Memeos and
Related Correspondence

Recommended Motion: Adopt Resolution No. 6-18

Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission, Legal Counsel
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Surebrec Holdings, L1.C

207 Brookwood Drive
Elko, NV 89801

Created on 02/09/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1



Upon introduction and motion by Councilman and seconded by
Councilman the following Resolution and Order was passed and adopted:

CITY OF ELKO
RESOLUTION NO. 06-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE ELKO CITY COUNCIL
ADOPTING A CHANGE IN ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARIES

WHEREAS, the Elko City Council has conducted a public hearing in accordance with Nevada
Revised Statutes, Section 278.260 and the Elko City Code, Section 3-2-21(C), and

WHEREAS, the Elko City Council has received and reviewed the application submitted by
Surebrec Holdings, LLC (petitioner), and has considered any public input, supporting data and
evidence and the previous action taken by the Planning Commission pertaining to Rezone
Application No. 10-17.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE ELKO CITY COUNCIL
that Rezone Application No. 10-17, involving a change in zoning from AG (General Agriculture)
to IC (Industrial Commercial) involving approximately 62.03 acres of property located generally
on the northeast corner of the intersection of Statice Street and Delaware Avenue, more
particularly described as follows: All that real property situated in the County of Elko, State of
Nevada, bounded and described as follows: Parcel C on a Parcel Map, filed in the office of the
County Recorder of Elko County, State of Nevada, on January 5, 2018 as File No. 735391, and
shown on the description and map at Exhibit A attached hereto, is hereby adopted subject to the
following conditions agreed to by the petitioner:

1. Council approval of Annexation 3-17 is required prior to this change in zoning district
boundaries becoming effective.

2. The applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City pursuant to which it waives and
forever relinquishes any rights it may have under that certain agreement between the State
of Nevada and the City of Elko dated September 4, 2008, entitled “Nevada Youth
Training Center, Elko Three (3) Non-Exclusive Waterline Easements,” and any
amendments thereto.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that this Resolution shall not be signed and
recorded until the conditions are satisfied.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that upon the above conditions being satisfied
this Resolution shall be signed by the Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __day of , 2018.

CITY OF ELKO

Page 1 of 2 Res. 06-18



ATTEST:

, CITY CLERK
VOTE:

AYES:

NAYS:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Page 2 of 2 Res. 06-18



RECEIVED
JAN § 0 2013

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

ALL THAT REAL PROPERTY SITUATED [N THE COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA, BOUNDED AND
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: PARCEL C, AS SHOWN ON A PARCEL MAP, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER OF ELKO COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA, ON JANUARY 5, 2018 AS FILE NO. 735391



ONIAFANNS DIHAVHOOdOL  *
JFONVUNSSY ALITYND *
.

OYO ONIBIINIONIAY MMM
6619 -8EL (522) Xvd

YQOYAIN AINNOD O3

— -

3.9€.C1.0N

AV JdVMV 130 ol

LNIWIDYNVW NOILONALSNOD otes v Opia WAW 1SV 66 IONVY 000'c6l “ON gor \E
ONIYIINIONT TAID LOZ ILING ‘131G HiS Spy i
ONIYIINION3 HLYON G€ dIHSNMOL '9€ NOILO3S r34g ‘A8 A3XD3HO |5
y 40 NOILYOd ¥ HSYH ‘A8 NMydd
wOu 1308Vd JO NOILLVXINNY 8102 ANVNNYF a1va E -—
271 SONIQIOH 334839NS 5
-
<
a E
~ f el %
AN > 2 o
N ! 3
8Y'605 E w2 2
T3.96.00.08 \ = 83
{df\ O <T aE
0,0 —y n =
0,1, =
¥ 5 g Q
. W o
(o]
. O 1]
L x 8 [N
S o, o Z
o w © Z Z
- oZ z ©
0 - o N
~ ’>_‘_l N
o % o 9
o
% £ g
— 2 g
& 5 &
‘ 3
o
NA <. 5|
. Wij ol
L oo 2|
; > <& |2
g a oI g N
N o Z
5 = L(S“’
w r
O
n
2l B O
313 g< :
- > -
2l¢ g 23 3 o
z I o =3 2
s n
LS 8
£° =
% © 5
w L
] ) | o
=< < o
g% Ol
oS n i
no
< Zz
Sy —Colpo>——
=8 ‘ =Y
» @ ‘ § Iz
a3
< (@]
o
@)
SR S LSsveeob . .




X City of Elko
* 1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160
FAX (775) 777-7119

***

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: January 26, 2018

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: February 6, 2018

CITY COUNCIL DATE: February 27, 2018

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: V.1

APPLICATION NUMBER: REZONE 10-17

APPLICANT: Surebrec Holdings, LLC

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Zone Designation for Proposed Annexation
ADDITIONAL APPLICATION: Annexation Application 2-17

A zone designation upon annexation of property to Industrial Commercial (IC).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to facts, findings and conditions.

Page 1 of 5



REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-10C-006

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 006-10C-006; will be issued a new APN upon
finalization of the annexation.

PARCEL SIZE: 62.03 acres

EXISTING ZONING: General Agriculture (Elko County); Petition of the
annexation was accepted by City Council on
1/23/2018

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (IND-BS PARK) Industrial Business Park

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped land

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
e The property is surrounded by:
North: Elko County Property / Undeveloped
West: Elko County Property / Partially developed Residential

South: Industrial Business Park (IBP) / Developed
East: I-80 corridor

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

e The property is currently undeveloped.
e The property will be accessed from Ruby Vista Drive and Statice Street

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections and other coordinating
plans are:

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko — Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-11 Industrial Commercial Districts

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-21 Amendments

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. The application has been filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC.

Page 2 of 5



REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-10C-006

2. Surebrec Holdings, LLC is the owner of the property.

3. The proposed zone district includes all of APN 006-10C-006 which is the area identified
in annexation application 2-17.

4. The proposed zone district is located northwesterly of the 1-80 interstate right-of-way.
The area was a portion of a larger property controlled by the State of Nevada. The City
Council took action May 23, 2017 committing two-acre feet of water to Surebrec
Holdings LLC in order to facilitate County approval of the parcel map to facilitate
transfer of ownership.

5. The proposed zone district is consistent with the Master Plan Land Use Component and

Transportation Component of the plan.

The area fronts the I-80 corridor and Statice Street.

The surrounding area is partially developed with light industrial land uses, vacant land

owned by the state located within the City’s incorporated boundary and outside the

incorporated boundary, and low density residential development located outside the

City’s incorporated boundary and separated by a roadway.

City water mains are located adjacent to the I-80 frontage and the Statice Street frontage

9. Sanitary sewer exists in Ruby Vista Drive but is too shallow to be utilized as a point of
connection for gravity service. A lift station and forced main could be considered for this
point of connection. A more practical point of connection would require a bore under I-
80 to a point of connection near Union Pacific Way.

10. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.

11. This application is being processed concurrent with annexation application 2-17.

12. The City Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 23, 2018,
and directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the
Planning Commission.

N

*®

MASTER PLAN:
Land use:
1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Industrial Business Park.
2. Corresponding zone districts for Industrial Business Park are Industrial Business

Park, Light Industrial and Industrial Commercial.

3. Objective 5: Encourage development that strengthens the core of the City, and
ensure all new annexations are logical and orderly and do not promote sprawl.

4, Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where
appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the
community’s image.

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact countywide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

Transportation:

Page 3 of 5



REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-10C-006

1. The area will be accessed from Statice Street or Ruby Vista Drive. The area could
also be accessed from Delaware Avenue, which would be considered a secondary
access.

2. Statice Street is classified as an Industrial Collector.

3. Ruby Vista Drive is classified as a Minor Arterial.

4. Delaware Avenue is classified as a local roadway.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and is
consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is located inside the 2-5 year capture zone for a City well located adjacent
to the property.

The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 - ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. The Planning Commission can recommend to the City Council a zone classification for
annexed territory other the default Agriculture District. The applicant has filed this
application in conformance with the code requesting the Industrial/Commercial District.
The proposed district is in conformance with the Master Plan.

2. The property meets the area requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4.

SECTION 3-2-11 - INDUSTRIAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS:

1. The size of the property meets the area requirements required under this section code.

2. Conformance with this section will be required as the property develops.

SECTION 3-2-17 - TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS:

1. Conformity with the section is required has the property develops. The property is
undeveloped and the provisions of code can be met as the property is developed.

SECTION 3-2-21 - AMENDMENTS:

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application.

SECTION 3-8 - FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT:

1. This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

Page 4 of 5




REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-10C-006

FINDINGS:

1.

2.

10.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.
The proposed zone district rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B)(C) and (D).

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-11, IC-Industrial
Commercial Districts.

The property is large enough to meet the development standards specified in Section 3-2-
11 of Elko City Code.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17.
The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed commercial and light industrial
land uses.

Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Engineering Department:
1. The parcel described by metes and bounds does not match the parcel of record. Please

revise the legal description to reference the map instead of the metes and bounds
description. The revision is required prior to Council consideration of the application.

Planning Department:

1.

2.

Council approval of Annexation 3-17 is required prior to action taken on this application.

The applicant enters into an agreement with the City relinquishing or identifying any
residual rights that may exist under the agreement between the State of Nevada and the
City.

Development Department:

1.

The department recommends approval.

Page 5 of §



* CITY OF ELKO

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
¥ 1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
* " ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX

To:  Elko City Planning Commission

From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager

RE: Rezone 10-17, Surebrec Holdings, LLC, Annex 2-17
Date: January 19, 2018

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the
Planning Commission’s review of Rezone Application 10-17.

Project Information

The along Statice Street between Delaware Street and Ruby Vista Drive.

The property is being considered for annexation as annexation 2-17.

The property is identified as APN 006-10C-006.

The parcel is currently undeveloped.

The parcel will be zoned AG-Agricultural upon annexation.

The proposed zone is IC-Industrial Commercial.

The proposed rezone would result in a rezone of proposed parcel 1 being 62.03
acres of IC.

e The property is bound by Industrial Business Park to the south, and Industrial
Commercial to the east with county property to the north and west.

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\Rez 10-17 Surebrec Statice St.docx
Created by Jeremy Draper



Page 2 of 3

e The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone.
Master Plan

Land Use:

¢ The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Industrial
Business Park.

¢ Objective 6-Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the
needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

¢ Obijective 7-Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where
appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the
community’s image.

¢ Objective 8-Ensuer that new development does not negatively impact County-
wide natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands,
drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

¢ Corresponding zoning districts are IBC-Industrial Business Park, LI-Light
Industrial, and IC-Industrial Commercial.

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

e The property is located within the 5-year capture zone.
¢ Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required.

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts

e Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-11-(B)-(IC) Industrial Commercial District

¢ Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Requlations

e Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-21-Amendments

e Conformance with this section is required

Findings

1. The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the goals and policies of the
Land Use Component of the Master Plan.



Page 3 of 3

2.

N oA W

&

Industrial Commercial is a corresponding district of Industrial Business Park Land
Use designation

The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4-B and C

The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-11-B.

The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17

The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2--8

The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City of Elko Wellhead Protection
Plan.

Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Recommendation

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the proposed zone
changes be approved.



CITY OFELKO

Pla n nl ng De pa rtment Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7219

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT
Regular Meeting of February 6, 2018

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning
Commission on February 6, 2018 under Public Hearing format in accordance with notification
requirements contained in N.R.S. 278.260 and Elko City Code Section 3-2-21:

Rezone No. 10-17, filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC, for a change in zoning from AG
(General Agricultural) to IC (Industrial Commercial), approximately 62.03 acres of
‘property, to allow for future development, and matters related thereto.

The subject property is located generally northeast of the intersection of Statice Street and
Delaware Avenue. (APN 006-10C-006)

NOW THEREFORE, upon review and consideration of the application, supporting data, public
input and testimony, the Planning Commission forwards a recommendation to City Council to
adopt a resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 10-17, subject to the conditions
listed in the City of Elko Staff Report dated January 26, 2018, listed as follows:

Engineering Department:
1. The parcel described by metes and bounds does not match the parcel of record. Please

revise the legal description to reference the map instead of the metes and bounds
description. The revision is required prior to Council consideration of the application.

Planning Department:

1. Council approval of Annexation 3-17 is required prior to action taken on this application.

2. The applicant enters into an agreement with the City relinquishing or identifying any
residual rights that may exist under the agreement between the State of Nevada and the
City.

The Planning Commission’s findings to support its recommendation are the proposed zone
district is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The proposed
zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and is consistent
with the existing transportation infrastructure. The proposed zone district is consistent with the
City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The Proposed zone district is in conformance with City
Code 3-2-4(B), (C), and (D). The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-11,
IC-Industrial Commercial Districts. The property is large enough to meet the development
standards specified in Section 3-2-11 of Elko City Code. The proposed zone district is in
conformance with City Code 3-2-17. The proposed zone district in consistent with surrounding



land uses. The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed commercial and light
industrial land uses. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc.
or pose a danger to human health and safety.

&5@4,, /éw/\%

Cathy La hlin, ¢ ty Blanner

Attest:

kb Aoty didsr

Shelby Archul ta, Planning Technician
.
CC:  Applicant
Jeremy Draper, Development Manager (via email)
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Shanell Owen, City Clerk

)



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT
1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 phone * (775) 777-7119 fax

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE

APPLICANT(s):surebrec Holdings, LLC

MAILING ADDRESS:207 Brookwood Drive, Elko, Nevada 89801

PHONE NO (Home)775-219-8199 (Business)

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):

(Property owner’s consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS:same

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO.:_ ()~ X -0 Address
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision 26, 3N So b

Or Parcel(s) & File No. _T13006K

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1% Tuesday of
every month).

Fee: A $300.00 non-refundable filing fee.
Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided.

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent
information must be provided.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area

s N RN

to be changed from “x” to “x”; (L1 to R, for example).

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 2" x 117 in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support this Rezone Application.

Revised 12/04/15 Page 1




1. ldentify the existing zoning classification of the property:
0S Open Space

2. Identify the zoning Classification being proposed/requested:
IC Industrial Commercial

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated on the property:

A mixture of commercial and small scale industrial uses which may include retail and service
activities, office buildings, public and quasi-public land uses, building and material sales, lumber
yards, automotive dealerships, and/or conditional uses permitted to include gas station, RV parks,

residential uses.

Using light industrial and/or commercial development standards where appropriate.

4. Explain how the proposed zoning classification relates with other zoning classifications in the

area.
The proposed zone is complimentary to other zoning in the area.

5. ldentify any unigue physical features or characteristics associated with the property:
Flat

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5)

Revised 12/04/15 Page 2



By My Signature below:

| consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

@ | object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

| acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

| acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant / Agent Robert Fitzgerald
(Please print or type)

Mailing Address 207 Brookwood Drive
Street Address or P.O. Box

Elko, Nevada 89801
City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: 775-219-8199

Email address: rob.fitz@earthlink.net

D )z |
ReAXK

SIGNATURE|

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
File No.: {0~ |3 Date Filed: _\\|2]1] Fee Paid: bopy o 2

Revised 12/04/15 Page 3













































































































































































































































































































































	Minutes
	IIIB Effluent Reuse to Sports Complex
	IIIC Award Water Main Removal and Replacement Project
	IIID PSA with Aqua Engineering Secondary Clarifier #3 Construction Management
	IIIE Award WRF Reuse Water Fill Station
	IIIF Award Cedar Street Reconstruction Project Ph. II
	IIIG Bid Sports Complex as Two Phase
	IVA 2017 Annual Report of Planning Commission
	VA Aaron Martinez Planning Commission Resignation
	VIA CGS Waiver 1-18 Golden Gate Petroleum
	VIB Liquor License Hunt Convenience Store
	VIC Liquor License Idaho Street Station
	VIIA Mona's Ranch Suspend or Revoke Brothel License
	VIIB Resolution 6-18 for Rezone 10-17
	VIIC Resolution 7-18 for Rezone 11-17
	VIID Resolution 8-18 for Rezone 12-17
	VIIE Resolution 9-18 for Rezone 2-18
	VIIF Ordinance 826 Adoption
	VIIG Ordinance 827 Adoption



